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ITEM NO. 1:

FY 2006 BUDGET (C.c. 04-287, C.C. 05-19, c.c. 05-63, C.C. 05-82, and c.c. 05-120)

CHAIR KANE: .. . (gavel). .. I'd like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee meeting for Monday, April 11 th , 2005. For the record we have members
Tavares, Pontanilla, Molina, Mateo, Anderson present. Excused this morning are
members Carroll and Johnson, and member Hokama will be excused for the day.
Members this morning we're gonna be starting off with public testimony and following
public testimony we'll begin with our prosecutors, the department for EP counts as well
as for operations, and we do have Ms. Davelyn Tengan and Mr. Wayne Steel here with us
this morning, as well as First Deputy Benjamin Acob also available. But before we move
into that members we'll go ahead and open up for public testimony.
Those of you who signed up to testify we provide you with a total of four minutes. At
three minutes we'll let you know if you've reached that time and if you can take that
additional minute to conclude your comments, and please remain here. We might have
questions regarding your testimony. Please state your name for the record, and if you do
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represent an organization we'd like to know that as well. And if anybody in the Chamber
does have a cell phone or a pager we ask that you turn it to the off or to the silent mode at
this time so that we can avoid any unnecessary distractions. With that being said, our
first testifier is Alexa Betts Basinger and she'll be followed by John Noble .

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MS. BETTS BASINGER: Good morning, Chair and members. I'm Alexa Betts Basinger and I
am here to testify on the revitalization of Wailuku Town. From ancient Lahaina to Lanai
City nestled in the pines, from friendly Kaunakakai to the fertile plain of Keanae, from
the paniolo place of Makawao to the harbor place at Maalaea, wrestling Kahului, cold
Kula, and the beaches of Kihei, Maui County is rich with towns that our people call
home, but Wailuku stands apart. One hundred years ago this week Wailuku was
designated the capitol seat of this four-island county. With that, Wailuku became
everyone's town. Wailuku belongs to us all.
I want to share a quote from a front page story titled "The building of an ideal town" that
ran in the Maui News on January 21 8\ 1905. Wailuku has had opportunities in the past,
has them now and will continue to have them in the future for growth and improvement.
It possesses an ideal site to build an ideal town once led a feeling of enthusiastic energy.
Inspire the citizens of our town and Wailuku will respond in growth and prosperity. The
growth which Wailuku has achieved is only a promise of what is to come in the future if
we will only reach out and take it. One hundred years later, that feeling of enthusiastic
energy inspires a new generation of citizens. Revitalization product, projects which
began slowly but in earnest in the mid-1990's are increasing and moving forward with
measurable momentum. Just last Thursday Lokahi Pacific held a small blessing and
groundbreaking as we began our second Wailuku revitalization project at 62 Market
Street. The County of Maui is a crucial partner in this effort. The mandate of the Maui
Redevelopment Agency is to implement the Wailuku Redevelopment area plan that was
developed pursuant to Chapter 53, Hawaii Revised Statutes, HRS, the Urban Renewal
Law. The time has come for Maui, the County of Maui to provide the funds that its
agency requires to finally implement this longstanding but as yet unfulfilled plan. The
people ofMaui County deserve a capital town that they can be proud of. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Basinger. Members, any questions for Ms. Basinger. Hearing
none, thank you for your testimony this morning. Next to testify is John Noble. He'll be
followed by Jocelyn Perreira.
MR. NOBLE: Well, good morning, ladies and gentlemen, and thank you for, uh, allowing us to
testify today. I don't know that I can do as eloquent a job as Alexa did there, but I think
basically what most of the people I know in the town are talking about is we need the
MRA, but we need the MRA to work. It needs to be funded, it needs to have some teeth,
but the people that have been running it in the past, uh, just haven't been doing it. If
you're gonna keep the same people in and the same thing that it's doing, for 30 years
they've been working on design guidelines for the most impoverished people on the face
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of the earth. There's a hundred things that need to be done in the town, and it need
salvation and it needs to work. And I guess that's basically what we're here today to say.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Noble. Members, any questions for Mr. Noble? Hearing none,
thank you, sir, for your testimony. Next to testify is Jocelyn Perreira. She'll be followed
by Paul Otani.
MS. PERREIRA: Good morning, Honorable Budget Chair Kane, Honorable Council members.
My name is Jocelyn Perreira. I'm the Executive Director and the Tri-Isle Main Street
Program Coordinator for the Wailuku Main Street Association Tri-Isle Main Street
Resource Center. I'm here today as I have for the last couple of days to try to give clarity
and input into the different parts of what makes revitalization, long-term revitalization
work in these small towns. Today I'd like to put forth our voice in support of the goals
and objectives of the Maui Redevelopment Agency that are contained in the adopted
Wailuku Revitalization plan that the Council members adopted not too very long ago.
The realization of this plan is really important for a lot of people in Wailuku, businesses
and residents and so on and so forth. These projects are documented and were advocated
for since 1987 and worked on an earnest in early 1990s and we're building a momentum
toward 2000. I think that some of the concerns that people have had about the Maui
Redevelopment Agency has been a lack of maybe fully understanding what role and
function that they are doing and what . . . how they work and interact with its partners,
and I think maybe the discussion will be good one to have this afternoon that you folks
are having. Maybe the Council's input and oversight in some areas would be very
helpful to spring things along. As you know our organization is particularly focused on
the municipal parking redevelopment of that particular parking lot as well as other
initiatives and other projects that have been planned for. We feel that we are headed in a
direction that hopefully will see us doing business improvement, a business improvement
district and that's going to give a shared responsibility with some of the, uh ... private
sector as well as government, and I think that is always helpful when that happens. As I
mentioned to you folks before our role is very, uh, is to augment those services, planning
and, uh, comprehensive project reviews and so on and so forth, that went into the
makings of the redevelopment plan, the, uh . . . the guidelines, the small town
development code which is really, really important to get the small, little lots that need to
be built upon so that we're doing infill development, and to try to guide what the vision
of the future which was articulated by the community and in the plan. So we look
forward to your discussion this afternoon and thank you for your caring about Wailuku
and continuing to care about Wailuku, um ... that concludes my testimony.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Perreira. Members, any questions for Ms. Perreira? Hearing
none, thank you for your testimony.
MS. PERREIRA: Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Next to testify is Paul Otani. And he'll be followed by Glenn Shepherd.
MR. OTANI: Good morning Chair and members.
CHAIR KANE: You can adjust the microphone Mr. Otani. There you go.
MR. OTANI: My name is Paul Otani and I'm a farmer and a tenant in the Kula ag park. I'm
requesting your support in this budget request for the improvement of the . . . of the
intake system on the irrigation system for the ag park. This project would help to make
the irrigation system more efficient, and that's all I have to say.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Otani. Members, any questions for Mr. Otani? Hearing none,
thank you for your testimony, Mr. Otani. Glenn Shepherd.
MR. SHEPHERD: Good morning. I wanna thank you people for having me go through that
budget. I went down and looked at it on the fifth floor. Aw ... that, that, that cuts into
your playtime I tell you if you've gone through it. My issue today is that if you haven't
seen Buck Joiner's article in The Maui News on last Friday the 8th , you should and I've
got a copy here if you ... none of you have read it because it's very pertinent to what you
people are allowing done with the taxpayers money. I couldn't believe it when I saw that
the Maui Visitors Bureau is gonna get $3.5 million. They got $3.5 million last year and
the State gives 'em another 3 112 million making a total of about $7 million. I cannot
imagine any money not serving the general public in the best manner than to put that
money into the Maui Visitors Bureau. If Maui Visitors Bureau disappeared tomorrow, it
wouldn't make any difference about tourism in Hawaii. It, it didn't, they didn't have that
money back in the' 40s, '50s, tourism boomed. Maui sells itself and it's up to you people
to see that we can continue to sell itself not by giving Maui Tourist Bureau, Visitors
Bureau 3.5 million bucks. Boy, that's a lot of bucks. The tour ride will come there's no
question about it. You don't have to give that money to Maui Visitors Bureau. Can you
imagine the hanky-panky that goes on with tooling around with 7 million bucks in the
Maui Visitors Bureau? Ooh, it shudders me. Thank you very much, and give it some
good thought.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Shepherd. Members any questions for the testifiers? Hearing
none, thank you very much. Is there anybody else here that has not signed up that would
like to testify at this time? Please approach and sign up to testify. Mr. Rippy, are you
gonna testify, sir?
MR. RIPPY, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: You need to step forward, sir. And then you can finish signing your document
after your testimony. Please identify yourself for the record and we'll provide you with a
total of four minutes, Mr. Rippy.
MR. RIPPY: Thank you. My name is John Rippy. John S. Rippy. Aloha.
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CHAIR KANE: You can adjust the microphone, Mr. Rippy, too it's ...
MR. RIPPY: Oh, okay. Good. Aloha. Well, I'm here about the Maui Redevelopment Agency.
You know I . . . it came to my mind that someone said something about the Maui
Redevelopment Agency might disappear or was gonna be in discussion about
disappearing, and I think that would be one of the ... that would be a big mistake. We
invested ... we're, we're, there are a lot of new owners in Wailuku Town that have
invested because some of the things that the Maui Redevelopment Agency said that could
happen in our town, and we can see some progress after years and years of being there,
uh, I see actually see things, and I see things that were discussed at the Maui
Redevelopment Agency. I just think would be such a big mistake to lose something like
that. I heard that it was about funding and if somehow we had to back them up some
kind of way because I just don't think that ... well, I was just on the airplane and I got
off the plane and I saw a sign that said that the greatest island in the world Maui, and so
happens I live in the County seat of the greatest island in the world, and this is the
blighted area of Wailuku which doesn't make any sense to me. However, I think that the
County Council, the County, everybody, should figure a way to fund this Maui
Redevelopment Agency because . . . I mean like me I'm a Wailuku person. I, I love
Wailuku and I love the idea of some of the things that Wailuku Community Plan comes
up with, and everything . . . the small town codes . . . I know that new investors are
investing every dime, their savings, their everything, into bringing this community back
into the ... what I mean I thought as a real vibrant community at one time, and I would,
we're just putting our hearts into it and we need that agency, and I think that there's ...
the discussion should be about how to better the agency rather than take that agency away
from us because this is something that we really, really feel like we're depending on.
They're the guys that we go to and then maybe they go to or wherever, but at least that's
a stepping stone for us.
CHAIR KANE: Are you done, Mr. Rippy?
MR. RIPPY: Yes, I am.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, sir. Members, any questions for Mr. Rippy? Hearing none, thank
you very much for your testimony. And if you can finish up your sign up sheet and pass
it into the secretary here. Thank you.
MR. RIPPY: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Is there anybody else in the chamber that has not testified that would like to
testify? Now is your opportunity. Seeing none, members, without objections we're
gonna close testimony for today' s meeting.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you very much .

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR KANE: Members, the Chair is gonna take, uh, like about a three-minute recess and we'll
reconvene at 9:25. This Committee stands in recess ... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

9:22 a.m.

RECONVENE:

9:26 a.m.

CHAIR KANE: Okay, let's reconvene, members. Thank you for that brief recess. This
morning, again, like I mentioned earlier, we have with us the Prosecuting Attorneys
office. Their, uh, Prosecuting Attorney Tengan, thank you very much for being with us
this morning, and with her is Mr. Wayne Steel, as well as our First Deputy who's sitting
in the audience if he's needed for additional assistance for resource. Members, we're
here to discuss with the Prosecutors office their, their EP account as well as any, uh,
spikes in their operations so they made themselves available this morning to speak with
us. Ms. Tengan.
MS. TENGAN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee. This year we have
increases in some areas. Our increased request over the '05 appropriation is due to
several factors and are evident in a few ways. The more, the most important though
which is our request for four expansions. That is for two deputy prosecuting attorneys,
which will function in the district court and family court areas, one investigator, and one
clerical person. The request for the deputy prosecutor is, is a matter of extreme need.
The areas that these people will be practicing in are the areas of district court, which
involves everything from violations through minor assaults; and the family court area,
which involves our domestic violence and our juvenile division. Presently the caseload
in all of these areas is extremely great. When we have an absence of one person in the
district court area, um, that ... we have a district court supervisor and four district court
deputies. If there's an absence in one of the district court deputies for vacation, sick
leave, training, that requires our supervisor to take a lion role and it's something that
we've been struggling with for the last year because we have had to fill several vacancies,
and what that does is then the district court supervisor is not available to perform the
necessary kind of managerial roles in terms of planning and conducting trainings, other
types of management tasks. Our area of fam ... , the family court area is in great need of
another attorney. There will be another courtroom at . . . soon Rick Bissen will be
heading that new courtroom four, and that courtroom four will be handling divorce trials,
which of course we're not involved in, but all family court trials, jury trial and non-jury
trial, and that will increase the workload. Presently we have two deputies assigned to the
family court area which as I said involved domestic violence, it also involves violations
of restraining orders, and we have one deputy assigned to the juvenile division. The
present caseload for the juvenile division is already a person-and-a-half caseload. A new
deputy will help us staff more adequately the new courtroom as well as, um, assist us in
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fulfilling one of our goals from ... ever since I took over, was to make our presence on
the outer islands more stable, more consistent and more apparent. That is rather than just
being there for court every four weeks or six weeks when there is court day in Molokai
and Lanai, I wanted our deputies to be there to be able to stay over so that they could
meet with victims and witnesses for upcoming trial and in that way be more apparent, be
more consistent, be more present for them. With the workload the two dep ... , we had
that going for awhile and then the workload changed in terms of court days so we were
unable to ... we were unable to do that for say the last four, five, six months, and I would
really like to resume that.
Our other very great need is our investigators. Right now we have four investigators all
together. Three of whom are assigned to 22 attorneys. One of whom is the grant-funded
Domestic Violence Investigations, grant-funded investigator, and he's dedicated to
domestic cases, you know, we have a very great caseload in that area and that's one
person assigned to that. So our other three investigators function in all the other areas
and that involves district court screening and circuit court felony trials. An addition of
another investigator is greatly needed. Primary reason is safety. One of our . . .
sometimes it's good to have teams. You have to have backup sometimes in law
enforcement, and right now three people handling district court screening and felony we
just don't have backup. One of our investigator's was attacked last year when he had to
go serve a subpoena at a drug house. He was attacked by two rottweilers. He could've
been killed, and for him this has been a life changing experience and has really
demonstrated our need to at times be able to have two investigators on a task. Lots of the
work of the investigators involves dealing with witnesses who are testifying in drug
cases, who are drugees, going to drug houses, um ... the domestic violence investigator
is often in dangerous situations as well because frequently they have to try to track a ...
the victim who's frequently still living with the abuser and that is very, very dangerous
and volatile situation. The addition of another investigator will also assist us in working
with the volume of evidence that we have that needs to be checked out of MPD, brought
to our office, checked in--I mean we simply can't afford to be negligent or careless with
evidence so we have to keep a very good paper trail and physical custody of it, and that
involves frequent long hours in terms of logging our evidence in, making sure it gets to
the courtroom, making sure it gets back from the courtroom to wherever it needs to go.
The addition of another investigator will also assist in the problems that we encounter
when there is a shortage due to vacation or sick leave or training, which then reduces the
number of investigatives [sic}, investigators even further, and although they're usually
for brief periods of two to three weeks, still those two to three weeks cause an extreme
and dramatic increase in caseload of already, uh, when you already have a shortage.
And we are asking also for one clerical person. The person is needed in ... our job is to
provide the service to the victims, to be in the courtroom, but our product is, aside from
that service, paper. And we have lots of it and we're gonna have lots more of it, and we
need another person to assist us with the management of that product, and to assist us
with our efforts to control our storage issue by archiving, and to assist us with our case
management efforts with our new case management system, uh, the Justware(?) system.
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Another area of increase is, urn . . . in our operations we have an increase in County
match funds. I did provide a, a little, uh . . . handout on the elements of that and that
would be this, this handout that looks like this. And ... the item of interest is item 6316
in the detail-CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tengan, if you can hang on one second, uh ... members, do you have a
copy of that handout in front of you? (pause) It's dated April ih. Members, dated April

ih.

COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: These are all the things I got April
find it.

ih.

I need some time to

CHAIR KANE: Okay, we're gonna take just a very brief recess so everybody can have that
same document in front of them.
MS. TENGAN: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Recess untiI9:37ish ... . (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

9:36 a.m.

RECONVENE:

9:39 a.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Okay, we'll reconvene. And members before I give the floor
back to Ms. Tengan, all of you have that copy as well as your details is 15-8, your
program is 17-15, details 15-8 and program 17-15, and the handouts are your reference
points for the discussion. Ms. Tengan, thank you.
MS. TENGAN: Thank you. Referring to you the handout which is entitled "Explanation of
County Match Request of $246,000, Details Line Item 6316". I tried to set out for you
the amounts that, uh, the relevant amounts and how we arrived at two, that $246,000 in
that line item.
The first item is for Career Criminal Prosecution. That's a grant that comes from the
State. The grant amount as you see $256,212 and the match is not so much a real true
match, but it's, it's basically just a shortfall of what the State gives us that we need for
our operations and will go for the partial salaries of my three most senior deputies except
for my supervisors in two areas, and the two clerical persons assigned to the Career
Criminal division.
The next item is for the Victim Witness Assistance Program which also is a State grant in
the amount that you see, and the match requested of $25,100 which will be the partial
salary of the Victim Witness Director and previously we used an in-kind match for that
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State Attorney General's grant, but now with the reducing funds and so forth we have
decided to ask for the cash for that position or for part of that position.
The third item is the Domestic Violence Investigations would be part of the investigator's
salary.
The fourth item is for our community prosecution program and the match is for partial
deputy salary and fringe.
And the final item is for the sex offender registration program.
Other items that you will see in the budget that have caused an increase has been our
request for two vehicles and we requested money for an SUV and one sedan. In our work
we need to have large vehicles for the transportation of evidence and because
sometimes ... because these vehicles are used for site visit and criminal investigation and
sometimes we need to have a 4-wheel drive. Right ... and the reason we're asking for
the money is right now . . . well, a year or so ago we instituted a motor vehicle policy
which would have us more care ... , be more careful about the condition of our vehicles
because many different persons in the office use the vehicles. Deputy Prosecutors go to
Lahaina every single week for court, the investigators use the vehicles all the time to
deliver subpoenas to (end of tape) witnesses allover the island and the staff use the
vehicles daily for court run. So we need to be sure our vehicles--and sometimes we
transport victims and witnesses when they have no transportation to court. So we need to
be sure that our vehicles are very safe so we instituted a policy of, um . . . ten years or
100,000 miles, and right now several of our vehicles are already past that policy. We
need a SUV as I said because of the need to carry large amounts of evidence at times.
Another item that we have requested is carpeting for all areas of the office except for our
district court and family court. The carpeting is ten years old, it's very worn in places
and is becoming dangerous. There are chairs in some areas and there's--I don't know
what you call them, but you know when the carpet bunches up and, and you trip on it,
this very morning I tripped on a hump in the carpet and that is for the amount of $25,000.
The other items that we are seeking would be our yearly maintenance fee for our
Justware(?) case management system of $14,000; archiving funds of $15,000. This
would be our effort to reduce our or to address our storage problem by scanning our files
and converting them to digital storage and we are doing that in two ways. One is by
having a company in Honolulu . . . sending our physical files over there, scanning them
and reducing them to CD media. The other attempt or method that we're trying to
address is by working with MIS. We've purchased, we purchased two scanners, MIS
purchased one, we purchased the other to kind of work on scanning our files, part of our
files ourselves to reduce them to CD.
And the last item is furniture cost of 6,000 ... $6,000 for relocation to One Main Plaza.

- 10 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 11, 2005

I would also note that the percentage increase or decrease over '05 appropriations in the
area of administration, uh ... this is 12.309 percent increase and in the area of general
prosecution this is a 19.765 increase.
And finally in terms of the total of our salaries which excludes operations and. . in
which the fringe is located in at least in the grant revenue . . . well, in administration
salaries account for a 78.527 of our request, and in general prosecution salaries account
for 86.867 percent of our request.
And I would also note finally that the figures that I guess are in the budget that we
proposed that you have before you and that I refer to today, excludes the additional
amounts that would might be increased by the proposed budget amendment for salaries
which I understand that would be $111,000 increase. And the reason is I, I, I simply was
too unaware to put in those amounts. I just didn't know to put them in when it was a
budget, uh, proposed budget amendment so that's why it's not in there.
And with that I would be happy to try and address any questions that the members may
have.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tengan. And members, again, just for note, urn, a couple of
those spikes are identified on the details of 15-8 I think ... excuse me, let me back up. I
think one of the first spikes are in 15-3 under repairs and maintenance at $25,000 where
it's zeroed out this fiscal year and then the expended in the previous fiscal year. I believe
that's the carpeting that you talked about so that's where that $25,000 difference from the
other two zeros, and then onto 15-8 where there is a $14,000 spike for computer services,
17 spike for other services, and then the expenditures for County matching funds are
highlighted, and then finally in the motor vehicle if there's any questions there it'd be
located on 15-9 members. The floor is open for any questions to Ms. Tengan. Mr.
Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Chair. First question I have is in regards to
the detail explanation of County match request. You noted that the first two would be
grants from the State. The other three would it be from the State also?
MS. TENGAN: Well, they come through, the Domestic Violence investigations I believe is a ..
. I'll let Mr. . . if it' s all right, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Please.
MS. TENGAN: I'll let Mr. Wayne Steel, the administrative officer, address some of that since
he does all of the grant monitoring.
MR. STEEL: The last three grants that you see, the two on the bottom of the first page on this,
on this, uh, one on the second page, those are Federal funds that come through the State
or are administered through the Attorney Generals office.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you. And the other question that I had is in
regards to one of the deputy prosecuting attorneys, you funded one of the attorneys 12
months. Do you have someone in the department that's gonna go right into that position?
MS. TENGAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Okay, good. And the last question that I have is in
regards to related cases. How many of your cases are related to drugs?
MS. TENGAN: I would say at least ... at least 60 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Sixty percent.
MS. TENGAN: At least 60 percent as also as, as, as evidenced by the fact that I took three of
my, uh, felony trial attorneys and put them into a specialized drug unit. They do all of
the drug cases and work with the drug officers as well as patrol officers who do drug
cases and they are busy all the time.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I ... everyday you're looking into The Maui News and
they're there. So thank you very much for answering those questions. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions? Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Good morning.
MS. TENGAN: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: The, the requested expansion, the four positions, your current
facility, your, your, your office space right now, uh, without a relocation do you have
space for these positions?
MS. TENGAN: Not unless we get very small desks. We, we really don't have a lot of space.
We really would have to, you know, change the structure of the seating.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So then part of the I guess requirement to get these
positions is a relocation so you got the space to house these positions.
MS. TENGAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions for Ms. Tengan. Mr. Molina.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Ms. Tengan has pretty much answered
my questions. I think my question is more maybe for Director Morrison. Just for a
clarification in our, looking at our program budget versus the details, uh, on 17-17 our
program budget we're showing an increase of two Clerk Typists and just one Deputy
Prosecuting Attorney and one Investigator whereas the details are showing two Deputy
Prosecuting Attorneys, one Investigator and one Clerk Typists.
Could I get a
clarification? I would guess it's the details that we're gonna go by there, there needs to
be an adjustment made in the program.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Morrison.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, yes, I would say there is a correction that needs to
be made to that and I apologize for that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
clarification.

Okay.

No problem.

Thank you.

Thank you for the

CHAIR KANE: Any further questions for ... Department of Prosecuting Attorney? Hearing
none, members, Chair has just one, uh, two other questions. Ms. Tengan, on our details
15-9 and that's where you talk about our motor vehicle area and you're talking about the
SUV which you've highlighted, it's listed under replacement. Do you currently have a
4-wheel drive all terrain SUV?
MS. TENGAN: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: And, and the status of that vehicle is what?
MS. TENGAN: It's about 1991 and it's way past our policy.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MS. TENGAN: It's also kind of ... I think it's a little dangerous 'cause some of the people in
our office are kind of small. One of those really big vehicles and we've had, we've had
death cases, at least one death case where a person was struck in a crosswalk because of a
person in a very high vehicle. So, you know, I really kinda would like to replace that
vehicle.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And then the second item is the actual expansion request for a 4-door
sedan, and I'm sorry if I, I missed your, your explanation on that. Can you reiterate your
need for the, the expansion of the 4-door sedan.
MS. TENGAN: Right now at least three of our vehicles are noncompliant with our policy of
replacement, uh, for, you know, at 100,000 miles or ten years whichever is first and that
would be to replace one of the vehicles.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. And the third question is Mr. Pontanilla asked you about the 12-month
position. The other three you're showing 8-month funding. Your recruiting effort would
start July 1S\ urn ... and go through a complete process of hiring.
MS. TENGAN: Yes, sir.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you very much. Any further questions, members?
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Right here.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: In regards to your records to be scanned, urn, do you
have any records in the old Wailuku Post Office that's gonna be removed?
MS. TENGAN: We actually had gone through an effort to ... we isolated, physically isolated
the files we needed to have scanned. We had them professionally cleaned and we are
sending those files or have sent them ... actually, Wayne knows the status better, uh, for
scanning, and the rest we were going to dispose. So we did spend some time doing that,
and so Mr. Steel can give you a better idea of what exactly we have there.
MR. STEEL: Yeah, we, we occupy the large portion of the basement in the old post office with
our records. The conditions down there were, were very, very bad, and so in order for
employees to handle any of those files because it was so moldy, we ended up isolating
those that absolutely had to be preserved and pulled out 185 boxes which are, which were
like Davelyn said professionally cleaned of the mold and so forth and so they were safe to
handle, and we now have them on the middle section of the post office. They then now
need to be purged and of documents that are not absolutely necessary we'll then send
them to Honolulu to be scanned.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Okay, good. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions, members? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
cleaned?

Yeah, I'm just curious what did it cost to have them

MR. STEEL: It was in the neighborhood of eight thousand those particular boxes that we, we
needed to have clean, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions, members? Hearing none, Ms. Tengan, Mr. Steel, First
Deputy Acob, thank you for your presence this morning we appreciate it, and members, if
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there's any questions that you need responded to please send 'em to staff in writing, we'll
forward it to the department for timely response. Thank you very much.
MS. TENGAN: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Members, we're gonna take a very brief recess. We'll come back at ten o'clock
and we'll have Ms. Alice Lee with us front of center, thank you. We're in recess .
. . . (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

9:56 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:03 a.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Okay, let's reconvene. Good morning, Ms. Lee. Thank you for
being with us this morning. Members, we'll be discussing the Kaunoa Senior Center
Wellness Building which is your program would be under CIP Page 23-4. Ms. Lee, good
mormng.
MS. LEE: Good morning, Mr. Chair. Start?
CHAIR KANE: Any opening--yes, please.
MS. LEE: Good morning, everyone. We submitted a memo to, uh, letter to you dated March
30th regarding the Kaunoa Wellness Center. My visit with you this morning is actually
I'm rescheduled from an earlier date so that's why we have this CIP on the Kaunoa
Wellness Center. March 30th ?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Lee, we'll take a moment to get that located.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's under Sheri's cover letter of 29th .
MS. LEE: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: March 29th .
MS. LEE: A lot of you should be familiar with the Wellness Center because we had submitted
the request for funding in a previous budget, and you very kindly approved the request
for funding which was I think $830,000, but since then, after we got all of our approvals,
SMA, etcetera, we went out to bid in the fall of 2004 and received a bid that was much
higher than the $830,000. The bid amount was $1,125,715. So of course we are, you
know, substantially short so we allowed the previous funding to lapse and we're back
before you asking for the additional funds. There's a little difference in what the budget
says and what our memo says. I believe it's a difference of roughly $60,000. Since ...
since we received the bid back a few months ago we are now required to install a fire
hydrant as well as other things. So it's, instead of 1,125,715 it's 1,185,715, but that, that
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corrected revised number is in your budget on Page 23-4 of the program budget. I'm
sure, uh, I'm hoping that your support will continue for this project because as you know
our numbers, our roles keep on increasing, our demand for services are ceaseless. We've
been using the cafeteria for allo ... , all of these activities plus more and now we've
outgrown the cafeteria. There's, uh, increase demand for wellness activities, dances,
fitness, Tai Chi, self-defense, all kinds of activities that require its own place. The
cafeteria we've, uh, that should be used as a cafeteria and we haven't, and I'd be happy to
answer any questions that you may have.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Director Lee. Members, uh, the floor is open. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Ms. Lee, good morning.
MS. LEE: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I guess go back to, to basics. Is this enough?
MS. LEE: We think so. We think so.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: You think so. Because from the time you initiated your
discussions with the lowest bid until now, time has lapsed and, you know, as, as you
indicate yourself additional requirements still keep coming forward, yeah, and at this
point because you know like this is like another attempt in trying to secure the additional
monies right now. I'm just worried that, you know, you don't get into stu ... , you don't
get stuck in the same predicament that you were stuck in, you know, with prior funding.
MS. LEE: We think it's enough. We've ... although we received the bid in the fall oflast year
we had ongoing discussions with the contractor to see if we could build a smaller
building or build a part of the building and, you know, to, to stay within the $800,000
budget, but that was impossible. So I guess our latest conversations with the contractor
were in December, and yes, there, you know, there's always that possibility that prices
may continue to go up but we ... but right now this is the information we have, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Any further questions? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. The $60,000 difference that you talk
about that's gonna be to install fire hydrant as well as fire sprinklers for the building.
MS. LEE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: In regards to the low bid, urn, will the contractor hold
that particular price in regards to the building itself, or will this project go out and be
rebid again?
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MS. LEE: I believe that we will stay with the same, same bid because that was the low bid,
yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. And the other question that I had was why took
so long to bid this project out?
MS. LEE: Well, the governmental process is a really long one. We had to go in for a SMA and,
uh, get all, you know, other types of approvals then go, you know, and then of course
make all the changes and revisions. Actually the RFP went out last summer. We got the
bid in October. We've been in discussion with the contractor for several months to try
and bring that price down. We realized around November it wasn't going to happen.
The monies were lapsed in December.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. Ms. Lee, any other sources of
funding you folks have looked at being that this is, you know, a higher bid now, uh, any
other sources have you been looking into?
MS. LEE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any other questions, members, at this time? Hearing none. The Chair has just
a few questions. Ms. Lee, there's, uh ... there's a current land use item that is within the
Land Use Committee that may be getting some purview by the Council in the Land Use
Committee that may be relevant in this case, that's the Henry Spencer project, and the
proposed dedication of an acre of property that would be adjacent to the current site of
Kaunoa Senior Center. Does that application have any impact on whether it's approved
or denied or the outcome of that would that impact the outcome of placement of this
particular proposal? And if, and if so, if you can explain some of that, give us some
background.
MS. LEE: I believe the answer is no. I don't think, uh, the donation of property will have an
impact on, on this particular request, and it'll have an impact on future requests and the
need for expansion. Mr. Henry Spencer, uh, we've been in discussion for a couple of
years now and he's coming in to you for I believe a change in zoning, and we are
recommending that his contribution be an acre of land adjacent to Kaunoa Senior Center.
There's a little complication in that we still need to decide whether that donation should
be to the State or to the County because the, the land that Kaunoa is on is actually EO'd
from the State.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you.
MS. LEE: It's a little complicated.
CHAIR KANE: No, thank you for highlighting that. I don't know if members were aware of
that, but the Chair just wanted to find out where you folks stand and what relevance that
project would have on this development, on this proposed development. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Alice, did you say the, the land that
the senior center is on loaned from the State?
MS. LEE: Executive Ordered from the State to the County.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, EO'd.
MS. LEE: EO'd, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see. So does that mean the County has ownership of the
property now?
MS. LEE: No we don't.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Can you explain that a little further what EO, Executive
Ordered means? I mean, does that mean if we accept it ...
MS. LEE: Well, at some point maybe in the future we need to go, we could go before the
Department of Land and Natural Resources, the board that they have and the Governor
and go through the Legislature and get that property turned over completely to the
County, but it's, it's quite an extensive process, and that's why I guess all these years
nobody has really done that because we've had the use of that property for many years-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, but we're about-MS. LEE: --since 1978.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But we're about to put a very large investment into too.
MS. LEE: We put many investments into it, millions of dollars already.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So what does the Executive Order actually say?
MS. LEE: The Executive Order allows us to use their property for, um, the senior activities and
education. Originally was the school.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: My school.
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MS. LEE: Mr. Tavares' alma mature.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: (Laughter) Kaunoa.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So is there any kind of a termination clause in this EO
or ...
MS. LEE: Uh ... as, as I said-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Or is it in perpetuity.
MS. LEE: --as I said, uh, the State has no use for that property and has, uh, we have, we have an
agreement with them, same with the old Maui High School and many other properties.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And the agreement says?
MS. LEE: I'd have to give you, I'd have to get a copy and send it to you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, I'd appreciate that. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, we'll send a request. Good morning, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Sorry, I been in and out this morning. One of my friend's
husband was, he was the person that was killed in that accident this morning, or actually
it was Saturday morning, but anyway, I apologize to all.
CHAIR KANE: No problem, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: On the Kaunoa expansion for that land is there any way that
we could get that deeded to the County and then pursue getting the land that Ms.
Anderson has been speaking about that's been Executive Ordered, go through that
process, or at least indicate our intent to go through that process?
MS. LEE: I think, uh, when the Spencer project does come up we should, we should discuss it
further and we've, we've talked about it, uh ... with DLNR, but we, you know, we need
to see which option best benefits the County, and until we get to that point, because if
you don't approve the project then we don't have a discussion. So we can, we can hold
off on that discussion until ... you may decide not to take the land. I don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh. Okay, thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions for Ms. Lee? Hearing none. The Chair has
one other one. Ms. Lee, you know for the senior housing project office building there's
no funds. Was that something that was an oversight or ...
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MS. LEE: The one in Kahului?
CHAIR KANE: Kahului, yes. I know we moved off point here. Never mind. We'll send a
written question. I have a question about something else so ...
MS. LEE: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: ... we'll defer on that. Any questions, Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Yeah, if we could get some information in regards to
how many land was EO'd from the State to the County that the County bought or deeded
the property if any?
CHAIR KANE: Okay, we can have that question created and I don't know if we will have it
come back here. That seems like a bigger, one of the bigger questions that we can have it
sent over to the appropriate committee to the Council Chair's-COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Yeah, it shouldn't be a budget item.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Committee of the Whole.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, most likely Committee of the Whole under Mr. Molina's purview. Any
further questions for Ms. Lee on the Wellness Center, members? Hearing none, Ms. Lee,
thank you very much for your presence this morning. We really appreciate it.
MS. LEE: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, members, I know we're taking off and on recesses but we just wanna get
people back and forth. We'll take, uh ... we'll take the morning break, we'll just take a
shorter version of a morning break. Instead of 15 minutes we'll come back at 10:25.
This Committee stands in recess ... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

10:18 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:33 a.m.

CHAIR KANE: Okay, members let's reconvene. Thanks for that morning break. This morning
we have the Department of Management. The Managing Director is here with us. Mr.
Keith Regan, good morning, sir.
MR. REGAN: Good morning.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you for being with us this morning. Members, specifically we have
some CIP, uh, CIP projects for the Management Information Systems, and you have an
April i h cover letter from Director Morrison, and then behind that you have some
comments. Members, in, in this particular request the Chair will caution that if the
questions regarding the computer room renovations, uh, if there's a need to get detail and
the Chair by no means wants to hamper your ability to understand what we're requesting
or is being requested of us, uh, the Chair will entertain a motion to go into executive
session to have some of that discussion if necessary because it does deal with some
security issues, and we wanna make sure that anything that we talk about doesn't
compromise the overall well-being of the County. So we have that opportunity, it is
posted on our agenda if we have that situation, and this one may provide us with, uh, that
type of discussion. So with that being said, we have that document with us. Why don't I
go ahead and recognize Mr. Regan, and Mr. Regan, if you can introduce Mr. Verkerke as
well.
MR. REGAN: Thank you, Chair. Good morning and members of the Budget and Finance
Committee. My name is Keith Regan, Managing Director for the County of Maui, and
with me here today I have, uh, our Information Systems Manager Mr. Jacob Verkerke.
We're here this morning to speak on our two MIS related CIP projects that we believe are
essential to maintaining the security and integrity of our computing and network
infrastructure.
The first of these projects that we'll discuss today is the MIS computer room
improvements or renovation, which is shown on the program budget on Page 25-13 and
that ... in the program budget is at the amount of $100,000. Members and Chair, I must
apologize because since the budget was printed this cost has been revised to $400,000.
The cause of this change will be further detailed in our presentation by Mr. Verkerke.
We have been in discussion with the Budget Director and have received support for the
change based on the critical nature of the proposed budget. With the source of additional
funds projected to be from certified real property tax revenues in excess of that already
recognized in the budget proposal, Mr. Chair, I would like to ask your ... , with your
permission to proceed with this amended request.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, members, without objections we'll go ahead and (end of tape) Regan.
MR. REGAN: Thank you, um ... and just really briefly, Chair, the second project is the
secondary computing center which is found on the next on Page 25-14 of your program
budget, and in that request we're requesting your support of $250,000 which will again
help us to further protect our valuable data. So, Mr. Chair, if it' s your pleasure I'd like to
turn over the discussion of the details on those two particular projects to Mr. Verkerke.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Regan. Mr. Verkerke, good morning.
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MR. VERKERKE: Good morning, Chair. Good morning, members of the Committee. The first
project we'd like to talk about this morning is the renovations necessary for the computer
room that's located on the second floor in this building.
The conditions of that, the computer room has caused serious concerns for MIS staff for a
couple years now. The amount of equipment installed there has expanded to the point
that electrical and air conditioning capacity is about to or already has been exceeded. The
computer room is not connected to emergency backup power, nor does it have a fire
suppression system.
Operational funds were included in Fiscal Year 2005 to install the dedicated backup
power generator or to install a circuit to tie the computer room to the existing backup
generator in the building. Subsequent developments have made this approach no longer
workable. First of all, the air conditioning units dedicated to the computer room have
suffered a series of failures. The density of equipment interfered with the proper air
circulation even when the AC was functioning properly. These failures by the way have
been corrected, but it's all an ongoing balancing act that we're faced with. The electrical
infrastructure started to show signs of reaching levels that could soon exceed the capacity
of the room's wiring, and proper sizing of the backup power capacity depended on
addressing the above problems first. In other words, before we could even start working
on looking at providing enough backup problem we had to have a good idea of how much
work needed to be done to the air conditioning and electrical systems to make sure that
we design the access to backup power with enough capacity.
As a result of these developments, MIS redirected its focus towards renovations to the
existing computer room but more than just a backup power issue. We requested funding
at the tune of $100,000 as was discussed earlier. After those numbers were submitted,
the prospect of the County's purchase of One Main Plaza became more and more
prominent in discussions about the future location of MIS and its computer room. As a
result, the timeframe for a possible expansion of the computer room into the neighboring
office (presently occupied by the County Treasurer) has accelerated, pending the
Council's approval of the purchase of One Main Plaza. MIS has now further explored
the possibility of expanding the computer room which was found to be a more practical
and effective solution to expanding and protecting our backup power capacity.
Such expansion would offer the following opportunities to make improvements to the
computer room. It will allow us to redesign the air cooling system for the computer room
to provide redundant capacity to keep the temperature within recommended operating
range. It will allow us to design the new facility to provide for appropriate fire
suppression, to design the layout of server racks and other such equipment to optimize
the air circulation to aid in cooling, and to allow for future expansion. It will allow us to
redesign the electrical service into the computer room to accommodate all of the power
requirements of the above, above improvements and also of course allow for future
expansion. It will allow us to provide for adequate backup power capacity for the
computer room by upgrading the existing generator if required. Discussions with Civil
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Defense Agency and the County's Energy Coordinator have already started, and we're
getting a lot of help from the Energy Coordinator it's much appreciated. It will allow us
to improve the ability of MIS staff to move about the computer room and to access all
equipment without impediment. I believe some of the members have had a chance to
take a look in the computer and you'll know what, uh ... and if you haven't I'd be more
than happy to take you on a tour. It's very tight in there. And finally it would allow us to
improve the physical security of the computer room, incorporating recommendations
contained in a recent security assessment.
The scope of the work for the design phase was adjusted accordingly and proposals we
received in February of this year. The preliminary cost estimates for the completion of
the revised scope of renovations were found to be well in excess of the original estimates.
Including contingency funds, since we haven't actually done the design work yet, the cost
of renovations is now estimated to be about $400,000. These estimates were received in
early March, as Mr. Regan mentioned, after the budget was sent to the printers. We
checked with the County's Building Maintenance Engineer and he believes that these
estimates are fairly realistic.
Without expansion and renovation, the County of Maui is exposed to the very real risk of
catastrophic failure of electrical and air conditioning systems. The present computer
room is the core facility for the many information systems the County has come to
depend on and for the extensive network connecting dozens of County facilities in all of
Maui Nei's communities. If the room were to be inoperable for any length time, the
impact on the County's functioning would be very serious indeed. I'd be happy to
answer any questions you may have or at least attempt to.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, the floor is open. Any questions for Director Regan or
Mr. Verkerke regarding this request? And to clarify, the additional 300,000 Ms.
Morrison is gonna be anticipated from the certification figure that we expect on the 19th
of this month which is next week Tuesday. Okay, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Good morning Mr. Director, Mr.
Verkerke. The... should we go and approve the One Main Plaza building, are you
looking at also doing some additional improvements there as well to I guess enhance the
present system? Can you comment, give comment on that one, Mr. Verkerke.
MR. VERKERKE: If the County were to purchase One Main Plaza, we would need to, uh, wire
up the building appropriately for the different offices that would come in there. It would
happen over time as offices are occupied. We have had the benefit of having fiber kind
activity installed to the building at the time of the crisis with the Planning Department's
mold problems. So that expense has already been taken care of. Actually it was done
courtesy of Time Warner. We are very appreciated of that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So with the computer room here you're looking at with the
addition of One Main Plaza an upgrade, an additional upgrade as well possibly.
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MR. VERKERKE: For the computer room here?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Here, uh-huh.
MR. VERKERKE: No. There shouldn't be any impact on that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Further question? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: So if we were to move to One Main Plaza then, uh, the
actual work would be between the building themselves in regards to the move to One
Main Plaza. So what you're saying that there's no added equipment that should be
placed in in to the existing MIS room?
MR. VERKERKE: That's correct. We have centralized most of the information systems and
servers that support all of the departments with the exception of the Police Department
they have their own facilities. So moving people from this building or other facilities into
One Main Plaza would not change that arrangement. We would just need to be sure to
connect 'em up with the computer room in this building in a appropriate fashion. So
within One Main Plaza will there be the need for some network equipment, but not
anything at this scale.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Okay. Another question that I have. Whenever we
upgrade our facilities in this building here, especially the computer room, do we remove
the old stuff? Or we haven't done any upgrading as far as equipment themselves?
MR. REGAN: I'm sorry, Chair. Just for clarification, urn, member, were you asking for, urn,
what our plans for the computer room itself or what we anticipate doing-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Oh, no, no. Whenever we do have upgrades or
replacements of equipment, do we take off the old stuff?
CHAIR KANE: What's the status of the replaced equipment?
MR. VERKERKE: We have had a program in place for a number of years now where the
equipment that we no longer can use or want to use, when it's still operational we have an
arrangement with Aloha Shares Network to redistribute to that a nonprofit organizations.
Typically equipment that we replace is well at or past its useful life and then they get
recycled through the Compu-Swap twice a year.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Okay, last question. I note that you talk about the
possibility of the County treasure's room as a possible expansion site. Is that gonna be
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made available for your department?
particular office area?

And where does the person goes from that

MR. REGAN: Chair. The anticipated plan is that if we acquire One Main Plaza that our County
treasure's office would relocate to One Main Plaza thereby freeing up that room to be
used for the expansion of the computer room that's, that's our anticipated plan.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Okay. Thank you, Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. And just to follow up just what you, you,
you said a minute ago, the inclusion of that one more room will give you the required
space you need for current and future growth of the MIS systems?
MR. VERKERKE: To the degree that we can predict how much growth there will be I believe
that will give us the space to accommodate us for probably about 10 to 15 years.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Ten to 15 years.
MR. VERKERKE: 'Cause we see a lot of reduction and the size of the equipment itself. So as
long as the electrical and air conditioning facilities are appropriate for the lows that we
anticipate we should be all right.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Urn ... with regard to the system, you know, when it goes
down and does it happen very often that it actually does go down, or has it had sufficient
backup systems to allow it not to go completely down?
MR. VERKERKE: There is redundancy for some of the County's critical systems. They go
down at times more often than the users like it not as often as, urn, it would cause us to,
urn, not be able to continue County operations in an acceptable manner. We are pushing
the limit of our ability to recover from these outages and that's why we are looking for
this particular project as well as the second CIP project we have which looks to address
the, the long-term redundancy in our system.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh. And ... I don't wanna get ahead of you, but I'm
sure someone will ask the question about, you know, if it's appropriate where that mayor
may not be located you may not wanna say. The ... the other thing that I'm curious
about is are there any funds available with the Homeland Security Act and a lot of other
things where now all these additional I guess protections have to be built into systems
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and firewalls and, you know, preventing us from being the victims of cyber attacks, are
those funding sources available to pay for any portion of this kind of system protection?
MR. VERKERKE: Member Johnson, I don't really have an answer for you because I've had
discussions with the Civil Defense Agency who I believe to be, uh, our connection into
Homeland Security funding. They are at this point not sure that funding for construction
and renovations and such improvements will be available any time soon. There appear to
be more first responder and other urgent needs that need to be addressed with the
available funding.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I'd be interested to know if those funds would
become available, however, thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. Thank you. If, if the County were to purchase
One Main Plaza, how soon could the treasure's office move there?
MR. REGAN: Chair. Almost immediately. Because there are certain locations at One Main
Plaza that are set up that would meet the needs of the treasure's office so relatively
immediately after the acquisition. Because I mean they're gonna need time to pack up
their boxes, their computer equipment, their desks, make arrangements to move that over
there to One Main Plaza and that may take a month to coordinate that effort and get that
done.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So it sounds like you don't anticipate a lengthy escrow or
anything that would hold the transition up?
MR. REGAN: We anticipate that once we receive the funding for the purchase of the acquisition
of One Main Plaza that we should be able to move relatively quickly on the closing.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you. One of the bullet points that you show over
here is the proper sizing of backup power. In regards to backup power do we utilize the
emergency generator that's for the County building itself for your backup?
MR. VERKERKE: At this time we do not.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: So it's a separate system we've been having-MR. VERKERKE: We have limited UPS capability, but we are not connected to the existing
building backup generator.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Is there plans to do that or you don't need it?
MR. VERKERKE: That's gonna be one of the issues that we will explore during the design
phase whether or not it makes sense to upgrade that, or if there's enough capacity in the
existing generator, or if it would make more sense to have a separate backup capability
for the MIS. At this point all those options are still to be explored.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Okay, urn . . . the other thing whenever the air
conditioning unit that's dedicated to the computer room goes down, how do you cool off
the room presently?
MR. VERKERKE: We bring in additional fans, we try to take advantage of the air conditioning
on the second floor. They're kind of separate, but by opening up airways we can try and
bring in the cool air. It's, it's a difficult process and it's not something we're very
comfortable with.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions in this area, members, before we move onto
the next one? The Chair has couple of questions for this. Because of the critical, and Mr.
Verkerke you used in your text you use the words catastrophic, uh ... as one of couple of
words to describe the situation. So can you help us tie in along the lines with the air
conditioning system, the electrical systems, is there a coordinated effort to upgrade and
stay in step with providing the capacity for the growth that you're looking, looking at? I
don't see any CIP kind of activity that's why right now as far as with AC, as far as with
electrical upgrades, help me understand what are you folks looking at because we'd hate
to give you the room, you spread it out and then we start getting system failures anyway
because there was no work towards getting the AC and the electrical systems upgraded as
well.
MR. VERKERKE: Part of the scope of work the, the ... new scope of work is to design and
install new air conditioning equipment that is designed such that there's sufficient
redundancy that failure of a part--what we're hoping to do I guess is have two
independent air conditioning systems each capable of cooling the room to, uh, within the
upper ranges of operating tolerances with the assumption when both of them working that
we'll be operating at the lower range of tolerances lower in temperature. Similarly once
we have the benefit of electrical engineering expertise, we will be able to upgrade and
improve electrical service provided to the computer such that the power consumption will
not exceed the capability of the electrical infrastructure. So in that, I don't know if this is
answering your questions, but in that aspect we looking to do some really fundamentally
renovations to the computer room. Also, with the availability of the office next door we
will need to do some structural renovations, remove walls, reposition doors, uh . . .
consider ADA requirements in the whole layout and design of the computer room. So
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it's going to be a coordinated and, urn, concerted effort to make this computer room that
will serve our needs for foreseeable future.
CHAIR KANE: Do you folks anticipate, because you were, you responded that this particular
expansion in to the treasury's room, treasure's room would provide additional 10 to 15
years, urn . . . do you see any additional space within the current configuration on the
second floor that you folks would anticipate to accommodate future growth, or would this
growth stop you and then we would have to deal with in ten years a complete relocation?
So in other words is there potential for additional growth later on?
MR. VERKERKE: The second CIP project we haven't really talked about yet will provide an
opportunity to deal with, urn ... the intent of the second CIP project is to create a
secondary computing facility on island to provide redundancy, but not to be a facility
that's locked up until and ... unless there is redun ... , an emergency to deal with it's
going to become part of our everyday operational functionality. As such we have the
ability to distribute processing needs and information systems over the two facilities
without sacrificing of course the redundancy to the point that one facility in a pinch
should be able to handle the whole load.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Finally, members, before I recognize any of you, the question of
movement or migration to One Main Plaza and how that ties into what level of need or
upgrades to connect this building with that building will, sounds like it's gonna be
decided upon once the departments or the personnel that will be transferred over to One
Main Plaza becomes clear so . . . and this is more tied into the One Main Plaza
discussion ... are we already anticipating additional upgrades, or is that included ... Mr.
Regan I'll ask you this, in that 3.75 figure that was given for us to One Main Plaza, and
members I'm just tying it back to how it's connecting here, is that gonna be a sufficient
number to accommodate our electrical needs to, to be con ... , or connectivity needs I
should I guess I'll term it.
MR. REGAN: Chair, if! may. Yeah, we, in our review and our discussion and our research, we
believe that that number--I mean not we believe, but in contained within that number are
the upgrades for the network to be able to have connectivity between the two buildings.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, okay, any further questions, members, in this area before we move to the
next item? Hearing none. Mr. Verkerke.
MR. VERKERKE: Mr. Chair, the second CIP project MIS hopes to start in the next fiscal year
would be the eventual construction of a Secondary Computing Center, and I kind of
discussed that in broad terms already.
For the same reason of extreme dependency on the present, single, single computer room,
MIS seeks to develop a second computing center to provide the redundancy and
operating capacity necessary to take over operations whenever the present computer
room would be available.
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The long-term vision is to have the two computing centers share the load of the County's
IT capabilities so that efficient, seamless performance and data redundancy will be
built-in to the County's information infrastructure. Operational continuity would then be
a design feature, not an emergency procedure to fall back on in case of natural or
manmade disaster.
MIS recognizes that it will be able to manage construction of a second facility while
involved in the renovation of the present computer room. MIS also recognizes that even
minimum Disaster Recovery and Business Continuity capabilities require that some
measure of secondary capacity be available. It is for that reason that MIS requests the
Committee's support for the following approach.
During Fiscal Year 2006, use $250,000 to create a basic recovery center in an existing
County facility to house servers, network equipment and data storage equipment
sufficient to run critical County information systems if the computer room in this
building is not functional. Discussions with the Department of Fire Control to
temporarily use the Wailea Fire Station are on-going.
During Fiscal Year 2007, use half a million dollars for the location and design study for a
permanent Secondary Computing Facility, incorporating lessons learned from the
renovations to the existing computer room in the Kalana 0 Maui Building. Discussions
with the Civil Defense Agency have started to explore as part of the study's proposed
scope the feasibility of creating a combined facility to accommodate a new EOC. And as
I mentioned to member Johnson, we've talked to them about access to Homeland
Security funding.
During Fiscal Year 2008, use $1,750,000 for the construction and furnishing of the new
facility as specified during the design phase. This amount is a very preliminary estimate
of the cost of a Secondary Computing Center only. The amount includes 250,000 for the
estimated cost of equipping the facility with computer equipment to augment the
equipment that would be transfers from, transferred from the temporary facility setup in
Fiscal Year 2006.
CHAIR KANE: Questions, members? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Chair. In regards to this Secondary
Computing Center, if we were to, if we were to relocate to a different location other than
this building here, are we looking at wiring between this building to wherever your
secondary location is located? And how do we wire the infrastructure that's away from
this building?
MR. VERKERKE: Member Pontanilla, one of the considerations for the location and design
study would be to take advantage of the existing infrastructure. We have been the
beneficiary of a very generous corporation with the Time Warner as far as the
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construction of, uh, fiber optic infrastructure goes. It is our hope that we can find a
secondary location that will be within the reach of that infrastructure so we do not have to
face the expense of extraordinary infrastructure upgrades.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: So it wouldn't be something like what the Police
Department is looking at, uh, part of their infrastructure is at Wailuku and, urn, the
possibility of moving that, partial of that ... part of that infrastructure to their new Kihei,
I guess, station so it won't be something that's separated other than ... I don't know in
this building here.
MR. VERKERKE: I guess the design study is going to have to answer some of those questions
at this point. I'm not really sure what it will find, but our hope is that we can stay within
reach of the existing infrastructure.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions, members? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Mr. Verkerke, if we can get the
system, your, your linking and networking with State and Federal agencies as well I
would think, uh, has there been any consideration to seek some type of funding or
assistance in that area to help upgrade our system here in Maui County?
MR. VERKERKE: I'm not sure that I understand the question. We have connectivity with the
State through the Statewide fiber optic NGN network. Throughout there's also some
kind activity to Federal agencies in place already. Most of that is managed through the
Department of Police, urn, but I'm not really sure what upgrades you would ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, is there any, uh, would we be eligible for some type of
funding assistance from State or Federal agencies?
MR. VERKERKE: As member Johnson alluded to there is probably in the long term an
opportunity to use Homeland Security funding, but we'll have to wait and see when it's
being released for this specific purpose.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: The trickle down effect, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Yes. Any further questions on these two CIP projects, members?
Anderson. A pretty subtle hand there.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: (laughter) I knew you'd see me. Thank you. Urn ... is it
standard procedure to have this kind of redundancy or is this something brought on by
Homeland Security? And if it' s standard, why have we not had it in the past?
MR. VERKERKE: Member Johnson, to address your second question first-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Anderson is the name.
MR. VERKERKE: Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's okay.
MR. VERKERKE: Anderson. Urn ... to address your second question first, urn, that would
probably be largely a failure on my part, urn, to make plans and to ready for this
redundancy. Such redundancy is indeed standard practice and, urn, I have spent the last
two years educating myself on those practices and concepts in the industry for disaster
recovery and business continuity, and the industry feels that spreading the risk over more
than one location is one of the better ways of ensuring that an organization like ours can
continue. Technology has progressed to the point where it seems like if we're moving
away from having a facility that kind of sits there and waits for a disaster to be activated
to (end of tape) advantages of, of having a secondary facility that's part of our normal
operating environment, and we're in the position to do that from the completion of the
infrastructure, the fiber optic infrastructure that's been built over the last few years. So
the time is right for us to, urn, remedy the deficiencies that we have and we have, uh,
we're in a fortunate position that we can do it in such a way that we will be very much in
step with current thinking in the industry on how to provide that kind of redundancy.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so are you aware of any of the other counties in the
State that have this kind of redundancy built in already?
MR. VERKERKE: I'm aware of the fact that the City and County of Honolulu has a secondary
computing center in Kapolei. Once a year they go through an exercise to switch over
some of their systems from the downtown computing center to Kapolei and they ask us to
participate by testing that we can still connect to the vital systems that we depend on over
there. I'm not aware of any efforts, uh, that the County of Kauai or Hawaii which
shouldn't be interpreted there's no such efforts going on.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, urn, this is a long-term effort I can see. It's not just
something it's going to happen with this additional funding that you're asking for. So
what, and, and, and I'm assuming are you gonna need, urn ... more fulltime employees
to keep the system up and going?
MR. VERKERKE: It is our hope that we construct this, can construct this secondary facility in
such a way that it can be largely operated and ran from our present location. The network
should allow us to perform most of our duties there without having to have staff onsite
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permanently. We're still looking at how we would arrange for backing up tape and other
media, uh ... from both centers, and I don't know if that would require somebody to go
down there daily to swap tapes or what have you, and it's probably going to be somebody
to, to, uh . . . go and, and inspecticide and check on vital, uh, functioning that we can
monitor remotely, but I don't except that it's going to require just for that purpose, uh,
too much extra staff. I'm, I'm hedging my bets here 'cause I, we haven't gone through
the design and we haven't gone through the actual implementation plan on how all this
would work, but at this point I don't expect that to be a major impact on IT staffing.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, and so you said that, uh ... you're discussing with
the Fire Department temporarily using the Wailea First Station?
MR. VERKERKE: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
equipment?

And they have ample room for you to store your

MR. VERKERKE: No, they do not. We have to be very, uh ... frugal on how we distribute the
facilities and there is some room available but not exorbitant, and we have to be mindful
of their operational needs so that we don't interfere with that. It's just meant as a stop
gap to buy us some redundancy that we do not have now until such time that the proper
measures are addressed.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and, and do you have any idea where this second
facility might be?
MR. REGAN: At, at, at--I'm sorry, Chair. That would be at the Wailea Fire Station the second
facility.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, he just said that-MR. REGAN: Oh, you mean the long term. That's, that's something that we're kind of looking
at and we're working with Civil Defense to find a location right now, but it's an ongoing
process of trying to find out a place basically. They have an idea, they have a concept,
but nothing is etched in stone yet.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And I'm assuming because of the natural disaster aspect of
this need you wouldn't want it at One Main Plaza.
MR. REGAN: It would be too close I think to this current facility which is why we're looking at
somewhere away from here so that if something were to happen to this facility, the
likelihood of it also happening to the secondary facility might be less. We don't know, I
mean any thing could possibly happen. I mean if you were to toss up any number of
different situations, natural disasters, tsunamis, hurricanes, I mean anything is possible in
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terms of total loss, but by, by spreading it out, by keeping them away from each other it
kind of helps us to protect our interest and reduce the liability.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. Could you explain to me what the acronym EOC
stands for.
MR. REGAN: Emergency Operating Center.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that references the Civil Defense offices downstairs?
MR. REGAN: Correct. They have, uh, I don't know if you've had a chance to go downstairs to
Civil Defense, but they have a very large conference room which essentially becomes the
EOC in the event ofan--when it's activated during an emergency.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so you're, you're in discussions with them that this
new facility for the secondary computer equipment would be housed along with a new
Civil Defense Emergency Center?
MR. VERKERKE: It's an option if you want to explore and not rule out from the start. Because
as vulnerable as our computer room is in this building, if anything should happen to the
building, uh, the EOC is similarly vulnerable. So, uh . . . to be honest with you that
would, uh, increase our chance of being able to tap into Homeland Security money.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions?
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: I got one.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you. So everyday you backup your system with
backup tapes?
MR. VERKERKE: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, you do. And I understand that the Maui Police
Department is looking at a second site. Have you ever engaged conversation in regards
to the possibility of utilizing part of their I guess area for your secondary system?
MR. REGAN: Do you mean at the present police station?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No, they have a proposal for a second station in Kihei,
somewhere in Kihei. I don't know where.
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MR. VERKERKE: I have not, but would be an option we could explore during the study phase
of this proj ect.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Yeah, for your long term ...
MR. VERKERKE: They have concerns about security that are different from ours in the sense
of they are more restricted on their Federal guidelines so I don't know if a shared facility
would be something that would turn out to be feasible but it's worth the look.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions, members, in this area? (pause) Hearing none. Members,
again, just to note this item that we're discussing now is on 25-14 of your budget. You'll
notice that this is a multi-year anticipated request and that this first step is only for a
temporarily siting, and that the next couple of years if we move forward will be for the
planning design and eventual construction along with additional monies to augment the
equipment that we located in this current, uh ... temporary facility. So we've got a very
preliminary estimate, which I think was cited in your, your handout of $2.5 million and
we can probably anticipate a little more than that. Any further questions, members, in
this area? Hearing none. If you do have any further questions, members, that come to
your mind, uh, please send it over to staff and we'll go ... make sure it gets over to the
Managing Director's office for a timely response. With that, gentlemen, Mr. Verkerke,
Mr. Regan, thank you very much for your time this morning.
Members, we're gonna, uh ... we're gonna go right into the Kula Ag Park with Ms.
Lynn Araki-Regan from the Office of Economic Development and her resource
personnel. Thank you, gentlemen. And members I believe that the handout that is dated
April lOth that was offered to you this morning, um . . . provides you with kind of a
PowerPoint presentation in handout form. Before I recognize you Ms. Araki-Regan,
members, everybody have that April lOth? Make sure you have that with you and then
we'll go ahead and open the floor. Ms. Araki-Regan, good morning.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Good morning, Budget Chair Kane and members. We're here today to
discuss OED's CIP request for $200,000 ... $254,150 for Kula Agricultural Park. I'm
pleased to have with me Agricultural Specialist Kenneth Yamamura here today to go
over the handout if you wish as well as to answer any questions you may have.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Yamamura, before you begin, members, your program budget you'll be
finding this request on 24-3 of your program under CIP. Mr. Yamamura, thank you very
much. Good morning.
MR. Y AMAMURA: Good morning, Chair Kane and members of the Committee. Lynn has
asked me to give a overview of the project, and to start off, uh ... the ag park is about
447 acres. There are 31 lots. There are only 26 tenants. I'd like to point out one of the
things when I looked over this list of tenants, uh ... 80 percent of these tenants or maybe
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possibly more, they have no other private or, uh . . . their own property to farm. So
you've made it possible for these, most of these tenants to farm. I'd like to describe some
of the things that we are working on or have worked on at the ag park.
The first item was the signage. We undertook that to help some of the farmers that would
like to pursue possibly ag tourism. One of the things that's not described here is we are
trying to help the farmers there by providing some street addresses, and one of the issues
is agricultural theft. And if you talked to the Police Department they have no way of
assigning an address to any theft incident, and so if you asked them well, what has been
the past history of agricultural theft in the park, they really can't give you a figure. And
so we're working to address that.
You should be well aware that the Kula Ag Park ordinance was passed in 2003. We've
been trying very hard to set up a new amended lease. The amended lease will allow the
tenants to assign their lots for the first time, which has not happened in the past.
You recently last year passed an easement which will help us to provide electrical power
at the park. If you wanna know the status of that, uh, we're waiting for Maui Electric to
begin that phase of the project. It should start soon. It's on their list of things to do.
There was problems with telephone service was brought to our attention, and the
telephone company has assured us that they have improved the system.
The next item the budget request that we are forwarding to you, uh, $254,150, uh, I'd like
to give you some background as far as what we are attempting to do here.
The agricultural park has had issues with water, uh . . . the present system requires that
the water is taken out of the ditch system to our County pump and it is pumped into two
reservoirs at the ag park. There have been times in the past, as you can imagine, when
there is no water flow into the ditch system they have nothing to pump to the Kula Ag
Park. Now, this project they've done a conceptual design of what they wanna do, and
essentially it, it improves not only where the water is taken out of the reservoir, but it also
calls for dredging of this reservoir. The purpose of dredging the reservoir is that there are
times when some type of maintenance on the ditch system is required, and any time
HC&S does this, and sometimes it's unexpected, there is no planning to do this. There
are other times when they can plan a shutdown, but if they shutdown the ditch system
then they cannot pump any water to the ag park. Now, the ag park does have two
reservoirs, and I believe the capacity is only about 600,000 gallons. Now, if we can clean
out the reservoir, we now have a, uh, longer period of time where the shutdown for water
to the park can be accommodated. Now you may think well, the reservoir is owned by
HC&S and they would benefit from this, but I look at it from this way, uh ... when we
started the ag park we didn't have to build the reservoir. It was already there being
utilized by HC&S, and so the farmers that are in the park benefited by having this
resource be available. All the County had to do was provide piping from that reservoir to
the park. So it does help HC&S but for, in the long term it has also helped all of the
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tenants in that park. What they will do right now, uh, or the design calls for, uh, putting
the intake into the reservoir itself. So if the ditch water is stopped for whatever reason
due to maintenance or in fact drought, at least the reservoir has a greater pool of water
which they could utilize during this period.
Moving on, last year you did fund $100,000. My understanding is you had no idea of
what the total monies would be to accommodate the project. So with the conceptual
design study we have a closer idea of what we need and that's what we are requesting.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Yamamura, that concludes your comments?
MR. YAMAMURA: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Members. The floor is open for questions to Ms. Araki-Regan, Mr. Yamamura.
And I'm sorry Mr. Yam ... , is it Yamamura?
MR. YAMAMURA: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Forgive me.
Pontanilla.

Thank you.

Any questions? Ms. Johnson followed by Mr.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh, yes, Kenneth, I really appreciate you giving us the
breakdown. When this project, assuming that it's fully funded and completed, when this
project is done, will it be secured, you know, all of the improvements and everything that
are located on the property that will help to just improve this, uh, operation of ag park
will that be secured or will there still be security issues? I know we've got the electricity
that's coming in to provide security but, you know, I just see that other people are having
vandalism in agricultural areas to equipment, to sometimes crop damage, but I just wanna
make sure that we've got enough money in here to provide that security and if you could
address that.
MR. YAMAMURA: Right now there is no security, but it hasn't been an issue so far. What ...
generally in that particular area what they have problems with is, for example, the road
that is right above the reservoir is used by Maui Pine. They have a field further in, uh,
past the sugar cane field. The issue that they have had is individuals have come in to
steal petroleum or fuel, you know, that's been the main issue, but I didn't believe there's
any, has been any security problem at the ... essentially they just mostly have the pump
station. And right now in order to pump water to the park, an employee of the Water
Department has to be there to turn on the pump because if, if the water supply in the
irrigation ditch is not adequate, they would burn that pump because the pump is
lubricated by the water so someone has to be there to turn it on, but no one is there like
for 24 hours.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, but you don't have a fear then that this will be
something that people could tamper with and ...
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MR. Y AMAMURA: All I can tell you it hasn't happened in the past, but there are always new
concerns.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I know. I, I really appreciate it, and have you given any
considerations with improvements like this to including a security component even if it
was a camera operated, you know, let's say motion camera operated system?
MR. YAMAMURA: No, but it, it doesn't sound like a bad idea.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Urn ... if, if you could, and Mr. Chair if we could respond
back just to have some idea if you could explore that possibility I think some of your
tenants would also perhaps appreciate that because any downtime is money. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Mr. Pontanilla followed by Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning.
MR. YAMAMURA: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: I was looking at the previous request in regards to the ag
park, and back in 2003 the County had budgeted a $100,000 for water and electrical
improvements. Has that work been completed?
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Urn, actually, Mr. Pontanilla, we did utilize the monies and the
$100,000. Thanks to the $100,000 that was provided in that year we're able to move
forward with the electricity component. Now, you know, the cost has ... the fee to Maui
Electric has been paid for and now it's in Maui Electric's hand to complete the whole
electrical connection process.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And then the other second $100,000 that we gave back
in, well, 2005, I understand that there's some monies that leftover like $97,000 that need
to be spent, and I think Mr. Yamamura explained that particular project would be
completed by the end of the year.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: That's on slide for, uh, on Page 4 justification for request. The additional
monies which will lapsed in December of this year, urn, will go towards completing
Phase I of this project, and the 254,000 that's we're requesting for is to complete the
other phases to complete this whole project.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So both requests, uh, '05 and '06 basically looking at the
security fencing as well as other infrastructure that need to be completed?
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Actually, urn, the difference between the amount that I think you
indicated, and I believe more monies were spent down recently, was to complete some of
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the accomplishments that are outlined on slide number five on Page 3, urn, the signage,
urn ... and I believe, if I'm not mistaken, the Department of Water Supply also had
monies in their CIP budget for Kula Agricultural Park, and in talking with DWS last
week, it's my understanding that, urn, you know, the booster pump, for example, the
replacement of the booster pump was done with the monies that DWS were budgeted.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: And the only reason why I ask is that both the
description and justification of the '06 request and the '05 request is the same, yeah, uh,
security fencing, the inside of the park, roadway, and so forth, and the 2003 request was
for water and electrical improvements along with the signage and security fencing.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Yeah, most of the $100,000 in that previous Fiscal Year 2003 monies
were for the electricity. Unfortunately, we didn't have enough monies to pay for the
fencing, security fencing that we had in mind I think back in Roz Baker's time.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: He asked the question.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, any further questions in this area? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I understand that there is, there is a
bill at the Legislature to get funding for a dual waterline Kula Ag Park. Are you aware of
that?
MR. YAMAMURA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Does that, how does that interface with this upgrade?
MR. Y AMAMURA: My understanding is even if you put the pipeline in they don't have
enough reservoirs storage. So I don't know if the dual line would go through yet the
funding, but I mean, you have to start somewhere. You either put the line in first or then
build the reservoir, or build the reservoir first and put the line in, but at some point it's
my dream that if we could do it through the dual line we wouldn't have to pump water up
to the ag park. We could gravity flow it back down.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So if the dual line does happen, does that mean you have to
have a new reservoir put in, or an enlarge one that you've got?
MR. Y AMAMURA: That's my understanding to really make it work 'cause that's untreated
water essentially.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
untreated?

But isn't the water from HC&S has reserVOIr also

MR. Y AMAMURA: Yes, but you have to pump it up. The dual line is further up the hill above
the ag park. So what I'm saying, urn ... if it comes from above you don't have to pump
it. It can flow naturally into the reservoir that supply the ag park with water and so
you ... well, at, I suppose, you know, at certain points you may have to pump, but it
would, would lessen the amount that you have to spend to pump.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So basically if that dual waterline got put in, then we
wouldn't have to be doing the upgrades that are being requested here to allow for ...
MR. Y AMAMURA; Eventually, eventually that would happen. If, if the reservoir was made
available, uh, if the dual line was in place it would eventually do that and we
would ... well, I don't know if we could totally eliminate pumping because the ditch that
they get the water from is one of the lower ditches and, uh, what happens in a drought is
the reservoirs Up country start to lose water, you know, the flow from rain is eliminated
and then essentially the only water available is the ditch 'cause it's at a lower elevation.
It does still, the water does still float into the ditch although the amount of water is much
less than what, you know, during a wet period. It can be like over, I think the capacity of
the ditch is like 200 million gallons a day, and it can drop to ... or has dropped to below
30 million.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Do you have any idea what percentage of this 254,000 will
be used to grade the HC&S reservoir?
MR. Y AMAMURA: No, uh ... the monies that you funded last, the last year, uh, most of that
money will be used to dredge.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The 100,000.
MR. Y AMAMURA: Yeah. So it's already in there.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. To follow up on the HC&S
reservoir, so the removal of the sediment and debris, uh, this was built up over what
period of time all this sediment and debris, and with the funding will you be using
this ... be done on a regular basis the removal of debris and sediment over a period of
time?
MR. Y AMAMURA: I wouldn't be able to answer exactly ... in other words, let's suppose we
were not drawing the water from this reservoir, HC&S probably has a schedule at some
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point when they, uh, no matter which reservoir it is they have to perform this taking of
the, taking out of the debris. What we do benefit because like I say we didn't have to
build this reservoir, it's a huge reservoir, and so we are essentially borrowing the resource
and we do have the right to take out so much water, but essentially they created this
resource that we're essentially tapping on to.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions in this area, members? Hearing none. Members, if you
have any further questions, please put them in writing, forward 'em to staff, and we'll
make sure that Ms. Araki-Regan gets those questions and can respond timely to the
request. With that Mr. Yamamura, Ms. Araki-Regan, thank you for your presence this
mormng.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Thank you.
MR. YAMAMURA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: At this time, members, we did note in our schedule that we could have some
other CIP follow up, but I don't believe we have anything scheduled to come in therefore
we're gonna go ahead and take lunch, and we will reconvene this meeting at 1:30.
Before we do that, members, just to give you folks kind of a head what we're looking at
this afternoon, first, we're gonna be talking with the Planning Department as well as
having a discussion with the Maui . . . about the Maui Redevelopment Agency and
hopefully we have the pertinent resource people to have that discussion, and then at
tonight at 6:30 we have the scheduled public hearing. And the Chair intends to recess ...
or excuse me, to adjourn this meeting no later than four clock this afternoon to provide
you with ample time for your personal needs. With that, members, we stand in recess
until 1:30.. . (gavel) . .. (end of tape)
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

11:37 a.m.
1:35 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: .. . (gavel) . .. Okay, we'd like to reconvene. This is Budget and Finance
Committee for April 11 th , 2005. Members, this afternoon we have with us the
Department of Planning with Director Michael Foley and Deputy Director Wayne
Boteilho here with us to answer any questions. We'll provide them the opportunity to
give us some opening comments, and for your information members there are several
handouts that may relate to that this afternoon's discussion. We have an April 5th
Department of Planning letter and this is responding to questions. We also have April 6th
preliminary review request, and another April 6th review request from Ms. Lynn
Araki-Regan, and let me make sure that's the right one. (pause) And that would be for
Maui so, Maui Redevelopment so I'll put that on the side and then finally ... yeah, so
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those two documents. With that Director Foley why don't you go ahead and open it up
for us.
MR. FOLEY: Thank you, Mr. Kane. I'd like Wayne to do our introductory comments, please.
MR. BOTEILHO: Mr. Chair, I'd like to briefly go over the changes in our operations budget.
There's not that much. There's like four or five of them I'm gonna refer to in your
budget details Page 13-5. On 13-5 under, under services, we have advertisement and that
has gone up from zero to $10,000 and also right below that we have printing and binding.
That has gone up from zero to $10,000 also. These increases are due to the general plan
update. We'd like to advertise to get more community participation and also we need
funding to print and bind various drafts of the general plan update. The $10,000 was, uh,
came up, uh, it was recommended by our consultant and discussed by our general plan
management committee. Moving on, uh, professional services you see we have a
decrease, but let me . . . this might be a little complicated so I'll try to be as
straightforward as I can. Last fiscal year, the amount is $362,000 ... $362,500 but,
however, that was slightly misleading because 205,000 of that was put in by the Council I
guess late in the budget session last year, and rather than change all the various pages and
all the various balances, the Council said well, we'll just put it in professional services.
Now that $205 came from $80,000 for a Puamana ... Pali to Puamana study; $100,000
for four, four EAs; and $25,000 for the Ueoka EA. If you, if you subtract all that, the
actual figure for professional services this fiscal year is $157,500. The ... so we have an
increase. The increase is due to $33,500 based on our spending patterns this year and
I've calculated we need that much. We also took 25 from the EA line account and put it,
put it in professional services that, that would be so that we have a little more flexibility,
and $14,000 in, uh, in contingency funds because we have moves and, urn, various, you
know, department space issues.
Now under travel, airfare and transportation and right below that mileage non-reportable,
you see that airfare and transportation has increased by 57 ... by $3,500. That merely is
because I took the $3,500 from the mileage and put it in airfare and transportation. The
reason for that was that because the vast, the vast majority of this mileage funds is for
Boards and Commissions when they, when they drive their cars.
If I can go to Page 13-9 of the budget details, this is our equipment. We have, we're
asking for two more vehicles, and with these two vehicles we would dispose of our final
two older vehicles, and right below that office equipment, the $14,400 and the 8,700, that
is due for our copier leases. The two new copiers is the xerox document center 430 ... ,
432ST, and the lease for that is basically 4,350 times two for a total of 8,700. One of
these copiers will go to current planning; then the old copier will go to I guess over, over
into the Trask Building where we have our zoning inspectors, excuse me, and the final
copier will go to One Main Plaza where we're gonna have long-range division. And that
is it, Mr. Chair, for our changes in our operations budget.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, members, the floor is open for any questions that you have in this area.
Are there any questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
professional services on 13-5.

Thank you, Chair.

Wayne, I wanna go back to

MR. BOTEILHO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: First of all, you were explaining why there was $362,000
in the '05 budget.
MR. BOTEILHO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And you said 100,000 of that was for four EAs.
MR. BOTEILHO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What EAs were performed for that?
MR. BOTEILHO: Uh ... we have, urn, one ... well, I believe only one and that one I, urn, you
know, I not sure which one that was.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: One EA for 100,000?
MR. BOTEILHO: Oh, no, no. We had budgeted four, four EAs for 25,000.
CHAIR KANE: Say that again, Mr. Boteilho.
MR. BOTEILHO: We had, we had estimated like, okay, the Ueoka EA was budgeted at
$25,000, that was a separate funding. So we had estimated that if the Council sends us a
land use change and we have to do an EA, we have budgeted four EAs for $25,000 each.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Which you never did.
MR. BOTEILHO: We did one so that's why ... well, later on as we get into our line items we
had reduced the EA funding from 100,000 to 7 ... , uh, 75,000. We'd like to have extra
because we don't want the Council to feel that they shouldn't send us a land use
ordinance because we don't have money.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, let's just take an example of the Ueoka which we do
know was performed, that was all done in-house?
MR. BOTEILHO: Uh, no. That was, that was done, done by consultant.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So when you're budgeting $25,000 for an EA, you're
doing that for outside services?
MR. BOTEILHO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And the 80,000 that was spent for the Pali to Puamana that
was also outside services?
MR. BOTEILHO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, well, you know, I'm having a hard time adding up
what you gave us. The 230,000 for professional services for '06 ...
MR. BOTEILHO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... the figures you gave us don't add up to that. So could
you please-MR. BOTEILHO: Okay, okay, let me try.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --please explain it again.
MR. BOTEILHO: Okay, let me try. Last year we had $157,500. At our rate of spending as of
right now, I would, I would compute that you add 33,500 more I guess for inflation. Also
$25,000 for the fourth EA, but we'd like to put it in professional services so we have a
little more leeway, a little more flexibility.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In other words there's 75,000 budgeted somewhere else for
three other EAs.
MR. BOTEILHO: Yes, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And this is an additional.
MR. BOTEILHO: Yes. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Where is it somewhere else before you-MR. BOTEILHO: It's in the line items right after operations. I guess Page 13-7.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you.
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MR. BOTEILHO: Yeah. And finally, uh, I wanted to put a contingency in there of 10 percent,
but it would come out something like $15,750. So me being the round figure guy I
thought, no, you know what? I'd just put it back to 14,000 and the total comes out to
$230,000.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, you know, just, you said 33,500, then you said
25,000 for an extra EA and then 14,000 is contingency-MR. BOTEILHO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --that comes out to 72,500 not 230,000.
MR. BOTEILHO: Oh, but if you add to the original appropriation of $157,500 then it should
come to 230.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so what is this 157,000 spend on?
MR. BOTEILHO: That is our basic request for professional services, mainly this goes for court
reporting services, it also goes for hearings officers for contested cases, also mediation
services and, uh, things like that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And did we spend more than that last year 157?
MR. BOTEILHO: Last year, yeah. In fact I think the previous year was something like 140,000
and our final spending for FY '04 was 157,500. So that's why I came in for FY '05
$457,500.
CHAIR KANE: If Ms. Anderson, if you're like me, and just what was said, and we look at
expended for Fiscal Year '04 there's a number of22,000 there it doesn't match with what
was just told to us so-MR. BOTEILHO: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: --if you can please clarify and match the numbers up, Mr. Boteilho.
MR. BOTEILHO: That is an error. I don't know how that got in there, but I've checked all the
back documents. In 2004 it was, uh, yeah, well, I believe in 2004 it was 157,500. In
2000 ... , in FY '03 was like $142,000.
CHAIR KANE: Sorry, Ms. Anderson, go ahead and proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's okay. I think I'll pass for now. Thank you, Mr.
Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Molina.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Yeah, thank you, Chairman.
Mr. Boteilho, just for
clarification, you mentioned some of the funding will be used to address the general plans
and community plans. Can you tell us what districts will be the focus for this upcoming
fiscal year.
MR. BOTEILHO: Urn ... oh, not the community plans, but the general plan.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: General plan. Oh, okay.
MR. BOTEILHO: And, urn ... well, okay, yeah, actually we have some line items on that so we
can get into that later.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE:
Johnson.

Any further questions?

Ms.

Johnson followed by Mr. .. , go ahead, Ms.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. In regard to the professional services and some of the
other studies that you've got in your budget, uh, I know that last term and I think the term
before we talked about cost of community service studies. Have you been able
particularly now that we're going into the general plan, have you been able to work with
American Farm Land Trust or contact them to take advantage of some of their cost of
community service? I guess it would be programs where they do the studies and it's
quite a reasonable rate.
MR. BOTEILHO: You know, I'm really sorry to say but I've not.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, if, if, urn, you were to have those kinds of studies put
in, what amount of money would you need, or could you look into that to see, you know,
what studies you might wanna have?
MR. BOTEILHO: Yeah, yeah, we could look into that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, if you could get back with us, Mr. Chair, for cost of
community service studies. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Question. Any questions? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Yeah, I'd like to go through the memo responses that were
given to us by the Planning Department.
CHAIR KANE: Before we do that, member Tavares, if we can just maybe finish up on this
major service item of230,000--
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay.
CHAIR KANE: --just to get clarification there if there is any other questions, and maybe I'm
being selfish 'cause I have a few questions in this area so before we move on.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No problem.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions in this area? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Yeah, I just wanna request that we get a detail as far as
the $230,000 in writing.
MR. BOTEILHO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, to back up, uh ... because ... Mr. Boteilho, the 157,500 is your basis
number based on the '04 expenditure.
MR. BOTEILHO: Yep.
CHAIR KANE: And that's what you carried over a flat, and then additional 205 that was added
in you had the 80,000 Pali to Puamana-MR. BOTEILHO: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: --which I'm noticing that is in this year's request as well?
MR. BOTEILHO: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So can you explain the current year, this year now. Has that money,
had, has that money been expended?
MR. BOTEILHO: We are very close to having a contract on that. We went out for RFP and we
have our bids in.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, if you can give us maybe a further breakdown of that information, and
then compare it to what we're gonna be doing with this 80,000 that you're requesting for
unless you have comments now, Mr. Foley.
MR. FOLEY: Oh, I was gonna answer your question regarding that 80,000.
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead.
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MR. FOLEY: We, uh, we went out to bid, uh . . . and received several bids that were
considerably over the estimate the 80,000 so we went out to bid again recently. We
received bids just couple weeks ago and two of 'em were between 79,000 and 80,000 so
evidently they figured out the bid amount or the budget amount, and we're about to make
a selection and award the contract. The $80,000 is for an Environmental Assessment on
a community plan amendment that we will now be preparing to consider changes along
the Pali to Puamana parkway project for eight miles changing portions of that from
agriculture to park or open space, and we previously had asked the consultants to do
some of the, the preliminary work for us, but all we were able to get for the 80,000 is the
Environmental Assessment. So we'll do the preliminary work, the consultant will do the
Environmental Assessment, and then that community plan amendment and change in
zoning, uh, yet to be undetermined as to how many acres it is, will go to the Planning
Commission and then to the Council, uh, hopefully the end of this year.
CHAIR KANE: Did the scope change when you had a first, first round and you had high bids
did you change the scope and then . . .
MR. FOLEY: Yes, we, we, cut the scope significantly 'cause the bids were 200 to 350,000. We
cut the scope significantly and, and, uh, just decided that we were gonna have to do a lot
of the preliminary work and that all we could afford for the 80,000 was the
Environmental Assessment itself which we really need to have done by, uh, by a
consultant. The other work we can do, but we were hoping that we would be able to hire
somebody else to do it so that we wouldn't be, uh ... our time wouldn't be reduced for
the, on the general plan.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Staff-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Hang on, member Anderson. Staff, I'll be sending more questions regarding
this item so Mr. Foley can expect a few more questions to get clarity, urn ... and I guess
with the question of the Planning Department initiating some community plan
amendments, and I think you said to park and what else?
MR. FOLEY: Open space.
CHAIR KANE: Open space. So we may need to get questions responded to by Corporation
Counsel 'cause it sounds like we may have to deal with taking issues since we're down
zoning and taking away somebody's ability to develop on their property. So we'll get
those questions in writing to the respective departments. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I just wanted to follow up on what
you were questioning. I may be confused, but I thought Mr. Boteilho said that 80,000
was spent in the last fiscal year on the Pali to Puamana Project.
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MR. BOTEILHO: Well, this fiscal year.
MR. FOLEY: The, there was, there was, uh, money spent on the con ... , the Towill report, the
master plan that was prepared, uh, cost approximately $100,000 that's been paid and
completed, and then this 80,000 is for the Environmental Assessment on the same
project.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So the 80,000 that was included in last year's 362,000
went towards the Towill report?
MR. FOLEY: No, it wasn't-MR. BOTEILHO: No, it's for the monies that were going, we're gonna, that we just went out
for, for bid.
MR. FOLEY: We had hoped to spend it the previous year, but we were, well, we were unable to
spend it until this year.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm ... you guys are making me more and more confused.
Sounds like you've got two $80,000 appropriations for the same thing, one in '05 and one
in '06. Is that correct?
MR. BOTEILHO: Uh, yes. Okay, last year, okay, urn ...
CHAIR KANE: Let's make clear now we're in this fiscal year which is '05.
MR. BOTEILHO: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So when you say last year let's, let's get the correct references now.
MR. BOTEILHO: Okay, well, yeah, you know, I misspoke. I meant, I guess I meant last budget
session, but okay, Fiscal Year '05 we approted [sic], appropriated $80,000 for this
project. We are asking for Fiscal Year '06 for $80,000 more so that we can continue this
project.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you're looking for $160,000 total for this project?
MR. BOTEILHO: No, urn ... okay, we have appropriated right now in Fiscal Year '05 80,000
and we're asking for $80,000 more in Fiscal Year '06 so we're asking for $80,000.
MR. FOLEY: And before that we spent a 100 on the master plan.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
lapse?

So the 80,000 from '05 you're anticipating it's gonna
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MR. FOLEY: No, we're gonna try and spend it by June 30th . We're gonna try to have it
contracted in the next two months.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, so, the first initial $80,000 is going towards the EA
for the Pali to Puamana Project.
MR. FOLEY: Let me start from the beginning.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. FOLEY: First we did a master plan. We hired Towill for $100,000. They completed the
master plan and we've paid them $100,000. Secondly-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Did it come out of the 362,000?
MR. FOLEY: No, that was the year before I think. Then, then the second $80,000 was for the
EA and we intend to contract, have that obligated within the next two months, that was
for the EA that was recommended in the master plan that we amend the community plan
and change the zoning as soon as possible so we're doing that, and then the additional
80,000 is for this coming year to do additional work with appraisals, additional
specialized studies, and help us with the, the, the community plan amendment and change
.
.
III zomng.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, so then it would be 160,000 total-MR. FOLEY: Plus a hundred.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --Pali, plus 100.
MR. FOLEY: So it's 260 but three different years.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions in this area? My final question is there any relevance to the
original Pali to Puamana Task Force with these, these fundings, and any feedback or
guidelines being set up, Mr. Foley?
MR. FOLEY: The, uh ... well, the expenses aren't related at all to the task force. They are
volunteer group. They didn't get expenses or anything. They were involved in the
preparation of the master plan, and now we've revised the citizens participation to an
acquisition committee which includes five of the task force members, plus three new
people, and they are working on the strategy and the timing for acquisition of the, uh, of
the land through the eight-mile corridor.
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CHAIR KANE: And this acquisition committee was a result of a recommendation of the
original task force?
MR. FOLEY: Urn . . . the original task force was appointed by me and the acqUIsItIOn
committee was appointed by me. It's more like the, the, the task force committee did
their work and now we have a different committee, which is half made up of the task
force members to take the next step which is strategy for the acquisition of the land.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Any further questions, members? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You're still talking about that line item that's the $230,000?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: And how is that related to your line item later on for
Environmental Assessments of $75, OOO?
MR. BOTEILHO: That, urn ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Are there no EAs gonna be performed out of this 230,000, or
projected to be ...
MR. BOTEILHO: Possibly one.
MR. FOLEY: There's one EA that's recently been, uh, identified as being necessary. We as, uh,
there's a possibility of settling a couple oflawsuits at Palauea and one of the possibilities,
that hasn't been accomplished yet so this is a preliminary discussion, but it's quite likely
that I will initiate a community plan amendment and change in zoning for the seven or
eight lots at Palauea, and that environmental imp ... , that environmental assessment we
would have to pay for, and we're estimating 60,000 for that.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So is that the one coming out of the 230 or later on in the 75?
MR. FOLEY: Later.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Later.
MR. FOLEY: Yeah, we, we actually didn't know about it when we prepared this.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: I think part of the confusion is we have a lot of mixed up
things, not mixed up ... we have a lot of things included in this 230,000. I would
venture I guess that the Pali to Puamana Project is gonna be a long one.
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MR. FOLEY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And perhaps the line item should be under Pali-Puamana,
Pali to Puamana and not grouped in with some other, other projects so the 80,000 ...
you're talking about 80,000 that's within that 230,000 is that correct?
MR. BOTEILHO: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah.
MR. BOTEILHO: Urn, no. The, what I talked about is last Fiscal Year, I mean this Fiscal Year,
FY '05 we had $205,000 in there in, in professional services which should not have been
in professional services, but the Council put it in 'cause it was a last minute thing. What
I'm saying is for Fiscal Year '06 I've taken everything out and the 230 is purely for
professional services.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, so there's no EAs in there?
MR. BOTEILHO: Well, that's $25,000 for professional services, but that could possibly be used
for an EA, well, maybe one of the cheaper ones.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So why wouldn't you move that $25,000 to your line item
for EAs?
MR. BOTEILHO: Well, the reasoning was that, urn ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Just make that 100,000.
MR. BOTEILHO: Yeah, well, yeah, but the reasoning was that since we only spent for one this
year, maybe we could reduce it down to 75 in the line item-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. BOTEILHO: --and the other 25,000, well, you know, we're gonna be moving and things
like that so maybe we need a little bit of, urn, contingency fund so I left it in professional
servIces.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. So the 80,000 that's under the Pali to Puamana is in
that line item and it's not in this 230?
MR. BOTEILHO: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yep.
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CHAIR KANE: Let me provide you with some clarity. My question originally regarding the
Pali to Puamana involve this Fiscal Year the 362 where it was included-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
CHAIR KANE: --and I was asking on the status and my, and the question was relevant to this
year, uh, this Fiscal Year as well as the proposed 80 grand what are the roles of the two,
is it redundancy, what's the distinction, and so that's where the discussion kind of
wondered off to-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --so my apologizes if we went too far away from the original intent of the 230
which is-COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: I think now it's clear. It was there, it is there this year, but
next year it's gonna be its own line item.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And I guess the Chair has one more question because Mr. Boteilho
you stated that you have of the 230,000, and you broke it into three pieces, 33 lIz,25,000,
and the final 14,000 contingency, that one 25,000 along with the line item of EAs of
75,000, I think you stated that that would provide the Council access and you wouldn't
limit our access to having EAs initiated, and yet Mr. Foley just said that it's gonna take
approximately $60,000 to move forward with your folks, the Planning Department's
initiation of EAs. So if you could provide clarity please on what access is the Council
gonna have in feeling comfortable with having monies (end of tape) initiated EAs.
MR. FOLEY: Mr. Chairman, if I could, the, the general category for EAs that we put in each
year, urn, are for situations like the one that came up Ueoka's property where it's an
individual piece of property and it's a very simple, uh ... piece, uh, a simple analysis and
one, one parcel. The, the one that I described at Palauea involves six or eight lots, and it
involves very significant change from a community plan of park to community plan of
residential. So it's significantly more complicated and there are eight different property
owners so we are anticipating that that environmental assessment is gonna cost
significantly more than we normally expect 'em to. What we been, what we been hoping
is that we would be able to just budget for two or three little ones and now we've heard
about a bigger one that we need to do in the near future which we estimate being 60,000,
but we're hoping to have several done at 25 each. The problem is that they really, uh,
it's, it's impossible to predict how many there will be so we just kind of put in, put in
three without knowing exactly where, where they might be required.
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CHAIR KANE: And finally, before I, uh, give the floor to Ms. Tavares to move on, the $60,000
for the Palauea work is gonna come specifically from where in your proposed budget for
'06? Where is that money gonna come from?
MR. BOTEILHO: Well, if I could take a shot at that, urn, I would say that we're gonna try to
fund it from this year's budget most of it, and if we can't then we have to take it from the
EA fund, but then our $25,000 in the professional services for an EA that, that wouldn't,
couldn't be used for nothing else but an EA.
CHAIR KANE: Professional services, which is the, part of the 230,000, Mr. Boteilho?
MR. BOTEILHO: Yeah, yes. Well, okay, let me put it this way. We going try fund most of it
this year, and the $25,000 that's in the, the, uh, professional services, that is an area that,
uh, that was the intent if we need to fund some other EA $10,000 or so we can fund it
through that professional services, and the intent for the $75,000 line item for the EA was
for the Council.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Ms. Tavares, let's proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: Okay, going, following the budget details and the responses
that we got from the Department, uh, for questions that were asked of them, on 13-6, on
the bottom of the page the last line is the general plan update, the request is $90,000, I
had asked this question and the response to the question is on the April 6th memo back,
uh, PL-01, were the questions, and the $90,000 for the general plan update I had a
question about. These additional funds will be used for community outreach meetings
and stuff, and I wanted to know where these meetings were in the timeline that Mr.
Summers shared with us when we had this issue in the Planning Committee?
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chair, members of the Budget Committee. These meetings
will be spread out beginning in the summer, late summer of this year and extending
through the fall, as well as in the following year.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Summers, as part of Mr. Foster's consultant contract,
were not these community meetings included in the scope of services for the general
plan? And if so, why are these extra ones being requested?
MR. SUMMERS: Generally, we feel that the current budget is not sufficient in terms of public
involvement, that the meetings that were budgeted for are not basically enough to achieve
the kind of outreach that we think we need for this project.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Do you recall how many meetings were scheduled originally
or included in the scope of services?
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MR. SUMMERS: In the original scope of services, we had budgeted 12 GPAC meetings and
eight regional meetings. Regional meetings meaning meetings in each community plan
districts.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: This included Molokai and Lanai?
MR. SUMMERS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So 20 meetings is deemed to be insufficient?
MR. SUMMERS: It's my feeling that 20 meetings is insufficient particularly given the training
that the GP AC is gonna need prior to the commencement of the effort.
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: And either . . . is the purpose of these meetings to gather
input from the community regarding the general plan, or is it to get reaction for the
general plan that has been proposed, that will be proposed?
MR. SUMMERS: The primary objective is to do both, uh, to get input upfront in terms of the
current system, how it's working, but primarily to get input on the direction that the
people of this County wanna move in terms of our general plan, and also to get feedback
once preliminary drafts are developed.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you. In ... if! may continue, Mr. Chair. You
also talked about a planning fair. Would you please expound a little bit on what in the
world this is?
MR. SUMMERS: Right, the planning fair or what we're calling a future fair is a
community-wide event, uh, kind of a big kickoff event to, uh, with a lot of public
notification to get community members to come and find out what's happening with the
general plan update, what various stakeholders in the community are proposing whether
they be our larger landowners, environmental groups, community organizations, have
some education going on. So it's intended to really get this projection on the air ways.
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: At one point in your schedule do you, do you think this
future fair would be scheduled?
MR. SUMMERS: We would like to have it the weekend before Thanksgiving.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Of this year.
MR. SUMMERS: Of this year.
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: And the public notification efforts is in conjunction with that
future fair?
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MR. SUMMERS: We would engage in stakeholder meetings prior to the future fair or some
public notification probably commencing in July, well, probably October to get people
notified of the dates, and it will provide a forum to look at the alternative land use
strategies that are developed. So it's not right at the front of the project, but it's close
enough. It'll allow us to get good feedback on the alternative land use strategies.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Have you used all of the money for the general plan in, that's
allotted for Fiscal Year '05?
MR. SUMMERS: No, we have not.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And what are your plans for those funds?
MR. SUMMERS: Our plans for those plans, let me grab the scope of services.
MR. FOLEY: If I could just add with respect to the future fair, this would be done in
conjunction with Focus Maui Nui, and it's a process that was used by our consultant
when he prepared the, the update for the Kauai general plan, and he recommended it to us
because he found that in Kauai it was very successful, uh, new kind of, uh, technique to
get a lot of people to at one, in one day to get a lot of information about the status of the
general plan and also the status of various projects proposed by large landowners, for
example. So it was, it was, it's kind of set up like a fair. There are booths and there
might be booths that . . . we might have several, there might be ones from the Water
Department and the Public Works Department that would describe projects that they
have. There may be also booths that would be put on by Maui Land & Pine describing
Pulelehua and may be ones for large project districts like Kehalani and Maui Lani, uh, to
inform people about projects that are partially completed, but mainly oriented to the, the
update of the general plan.
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: And mostly geared to the urban growth boundaries where
they're gonna be set I would assume.
MR. FOLEY: Yeah, I don't know, I don't know yet, you know, how far we will be in terms of
having the alternatives prepared for the urban growth boundaries at that time, but we
would, we would certainly describe what urban growth boundaries are and, and we may
be able to do a demonstration of the spatial growth model that may not include real, you
know, real Maui alternatives, but at least describe the technology that's available.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES:
Thanksgiving of this year?

So how much information are you going to have by

MR. FOLEY: That one I'll give to John. (laughter)
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: I mean, you know, I'm only asking these because in the
Planning Committee when you presented the schedule for the general plan update, it
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seemed like it wasn't gonna be very much started before this fall, and I'm just wondering
if this fair should perhaps be in the next fiscal year.
MR. FOLEY: Well, we're hoping to have the GPAC appointed by the Council in June or July of
this year, and then just spend some time explaining to them what, what a general plan is
and how it functions and how it relates to State law and Bill 84 in the Charter, etcetera,
but the, the future fair is expected to--like John said it's not at the very beginning which
would be in the summer. It's in the middle, mid-November after we've done some
preliminary work.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. With the GPAC.
MR. FOLEY: With the GP AC.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. And you said Focus Maui Nui is going to be like a
joint sponsor of this or you're doing it in conjunction with them?
MR. FOLEY: Focus Maui Nui is, is going to be working in conjunction with the Planning
Department-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. FOLEY: --and the consultants. We've had meetings, preliminary meetings with Jeanne
Skog who is here, uh, and we, and we wanna use the information that Focus Maui Nui
provided with 1,700 people, but we need to expand it because there were questions that
weren't asked and we need to figure out how to best get more information from people
that they reached, uh, that previously hadn't been involved in the planning process. So
we wanna build on that Focus Maui Nui preliminary experience and expand it.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Thank you. Mr. Chair, that's all I have on this line item.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Before we go any further, Mr. Boteilho, why don't you take
us through a brief walk through on that particular document that member Tavares was
referencing and I know we have, uh ... what is it nine? We have nine line items there. If
you can just touch base. I know we have 'em in writing, but if you can provide any brief
summary/highlights on the nine proposed appropriations.
MR. BOTEILHO: Okay, you know what, um ... I tell you what, let's work off the budget
details, and John and I will be switching off 'cause I guess we had two response letters
and I did one and then he did the other.
So the first line item is in 13 ... , Page 13-5 and it's right at the bottom and it's the MRA
for $80,000 and I'll let John provide more clarification on this, but I'd like to say for the
record that last time I spoke that I thought all $80,000 was to go to a study for a business
improvement district. I was in error so John, John can explain.
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MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chair and members of the Council-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, and before you start, Mr. Summers-COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES : Yeah, I thought we were gonna spend quite a bit of time on
the MRA separately-CHAIR KANE: We are and that's why I was gonna just interject as well.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: And let them know if we can skip that one and we'll get back to that 'cause that
one we're gonna spend some more detail time on after the overall presentation by the
Planning Department. So let's move onto number two, please.
MR. BOTEILHO: Okay, the, okay, so 13-6, the first one is Wailuku Main Street Tri-Isle Main
Street Resource Center 200,000. We had discussed that, urn, at the last meeting and
there's, there's a justification sheet that was passed out on that day, and we would
support the justification binder up to $200,000.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, let's move on.
MR. BOTEILHO: The next line item still on 13-6, general plan update I guess we just discussed
that. So now we move on to 13-7 and the digital flood mapping project, uh, we had
reduced that from $100,000 to $50,000 and the reason was because we were are getting a
lot, a lot of assistance from the Federal government. We have started a project that, urn,
and, and they know we're serious. So for example they have, they have offered to, to
produce digital flood maps for all of Kihei for us so that's why we lessened it for, urn, to
$50,000. We're well on the way. We have shot LIDAR allover there island, we shot
West Maui, Kihei, Central Maui, East Maui, and so now we're moving on to processing
them into digital flood maps.
The next one is the aerial photo services. This one, actually I should say satellite photo
services, urn .... this, urn, we was asking for $75,000 more basically because the first
75,000 was for Maui Island and, urn ... and this second 75,000 is gonna be for like
Molokai and Lanai and, urn ... so the third 75,000 Fiscal Year '06 this is to continue that
program especially in a sense where there are resq ... , there are request for updated shots.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, before you go any further, Mr. Boteilho, you just mentioned the third
$75,000.
MR. BOTEILHO: The Fiscal Year '06.
- 57 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 11, 2005

CHAIR KANE: Okay. So looking at that page 13-7 details, the '05 $75,000 is that the one the
first $75,000 is that for Maui Island what you currently doing?
MR. BOTEILHO: Yeah, you know, Mr. Chair, okay, I guess so it was an error. Okay, if you
look in Fiscal Year '05 ... well, Fiscal Year '04 it shows zero.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
MR. BOTEILHO: Urn ... yeah, yeah. So Fiscal Year '05 that's for all for Maui island.
CHAIR KANE: Current year, this current year?
MR. BOTEILHO: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. BOTEILHO: And then the second, uh, Fiscal Year '06 $75,000 is for Molokai and Lanai,
and again to shoot, urn ... to shoot LIDAR ... I mean, to shoot satellite images upon
demand.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Proceed.
MR. BOTEILHO: The spatial growth model, urn, $75,000 for Fiscal Year '06, uh, this is to
continue the model. Our scope of services for this Fiscal Year '06 monies is for-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Zero five. Zero five.
MR. BOTEILHO: Well, okay, '05 we have the basic model done. Now in Fiscal Year '06 we're
gonna use the monies to concentrate on a land use forecast for use in the general plan.
CHAIR KANE: Members, the Chair's gonna call for a recess. Okay, the time now is 2:25; we'll
reconvene at 2:30 ... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

2:25 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:31 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: .. . (gavel) . .. Okay, let's reconvene. Mr. Foley, Mr. Boteilho, why don't we
get back onto the April 6th , urn, responses or, excuse me, the, urn, give us a brief
summaries on the three more items. The first one if you can start on, please, on page
number five, members, and that's numbered as number seven, the 25,000 for Bill 84
Resource Study, and then we'll go from there. There's two more after that. We'll get
some brief comment there and the Chair will open it up for questions on all the items that
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are on this particular document before we proceed. Okay, members, without objections
we'll do that. Mr., Mr. Boteilho from Page 5 number seven.
MR. BOTEILHO: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I'd like to ask Mr. Summers to answer this question.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chair, members of the Committee, and the public. If you
look at your April 6, 2005, memo, uh, Page 5 question number seven, and the question
relates to the additional resources study. It's a $25,000 cost item. Basically this project
is, uh, mandated by Bill 84. If you go into Bill 84 Subsection 2.80B.030A.c, you'll see
that there's a reference to an additional resources study that's required as a technical
document in the general plan. This project will include the inventory of mapping of
important natural and cultural resources using many of the documents that have been
developed over the last ten years, assembling that information, and mapping it into a GIS
database. We feel that this is a very important set of information that will be needed to
make rational and logical decisions on natural resource, policy preservation, as well as
cultural resource management policy. Again, it's a study that's intended to implement
the requirement set forth in Bill 84.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, let's proceed and finish up the last two and then we'll open it up for
questions. Number eight on Page 6.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chair, if you go to Page 6 item number eight, the
Development Mitigation Fee Study with a cost of $100,000, uh, basically this relates to
all the different fees and lack of, of fees that are set forth in various or should be set forth
in rules and ordinances for public services that we see over and over again when we
review permits. Everybody knows that our infrastructure systems have not kept pace
with development in this County. We have a process of reviewing applications and
requiring the different mitigation measures be imposed, but it really needs to be in a
coherent system for doing this, and the lack of ordinances and implementing rules is a
concern for us. So this proposal would be to consolidate the various fees that we do have
and implement and develop fees for infrastructures that we don't have.
CHAIR KANE: And finally number nine, Mr. Summers.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Number nine relates to a proposal for a Housing Cost
Structure Analysis for $35,000. During the general plan update we expect to hear a lot
about the affordable housing situation here. It's a very serious situation, it needs careful
thought and consideration during the general plan update. We're wary of developing
policy on this area without having some good research to back it up. So this will allow us
to have a good set of background information on what the actual cost structure is for
housing in the County, what some of the major impediments are, uh, so that we can make
inform and grounded policy in the general plan on this subject.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, members, the floor is open for any of the items within this April 6 docket
it's open. Mr. .. , excuse me, Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Mr. Summers, good
afternoon. I'm a little, I'm a little, urn ... we were confused about this number nine item
because it just seems contrary to Administration's belief that there is no affordable
housing project, that houses do exist, and as we speak homes are currently being built. I
don't understand the need for especially Planning at this point to come up with a
structured study such as this because it just seems contrary. Can you, can you comment
on, urn, I guess, Administration's position because what you're telling me now kinda like
adds focus to the fact that affordable housing is a crisis in this County.
CHAIR KANE: Planning Department.
MR. FOLEY: Mr. Chairman, if I can respond. We, we do recognize that progress is being
made, uh, with a number of affordable housing projects under construction, but we
recognize that the five or 600 units that are under construction are not gonna satisfy the
need which is more in the neighborhood of 3,500 housing units, urn ... and the purpose
of this study is Mr. Summers described is to get a better handle on exactly what the
impediments are to affordable housing and to try to provide some guidance to affordable
housing policy recommendations to the, to the Council because the affordable housing
issue is going to, you know, be a continuous issue and we need good data concerning the
whole affordability issue, but we certainly don't, don't take the position that the
affordable housing problem has been solved.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Well, that was never my intention of indicating that it was
because-MR. FOLEY: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --that's kinda like, uh ... the $35,000 ... , the 35,000 request this
is a request that's gonna be contracted out for somebody to do the study?
MR. FOLEY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And can you tell me why, uh, is Housing and Human
Concerns involved in one way or another with this particular proposal?
MR. FOLEY: Yes, we would certainly work with them, uh, because they, they process the
day-to-day applications for all kinds of affordable housing, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And the, the, the Housing and Human Concerns that, uh,
Technical Committee, uh, that reviews plans is that particular group, including yourself,
is this gonna be part of a group that also participates in the development of
this particular-- 60 -
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MR. FOLEY: Yeah, I think it would be an excellent idea for the, for the, us to get information
from that group, uh, before we do a r ... , a request for proposal, and then once there is a
document prepared to have it reviewed by that Technical Advisory Committee because it
represents most of the departments of the County, the one's associated with development
like Public Works, and Fire, and Planning, and Housing, and we, we feel that that
committee has been a success, but this would be another way to use that experience that
we're getting with our, our meetings every couple weeks.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And then lastly, Mr. Chair, is it the intent of this study
to also develop an affordable housing policy?
MR. FOLEY: Uh ... I hope that the affordable housing policy is actually created or adopted by
the Council before this study is done, but like I said this is gonna be a continuing issue in
Maui County, and it, it, this study could be used to refine that, that housing policy and,
and perhaps make modifications to it after we use it for a period of time because the
housing policy is not likely to remain fixed, it's likely to have to be changed as the
economy changes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Or until the supply catch ups, it catches up with the demand.
MR. FOLEY: Yeah, that probably will never happen.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, yeah. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Questions, members? Ms. Tavares followed by Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Regarding this housing, uh, line item, was the, urn, Maui Nui
Housing Task Force part of the consultation and where did this idea come from?
MR. SUMMERS: Excellent question. You know, this issue was significant area that was in the
Maui Nui report.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. SUMMERS: So that's really one of the genesis of this as well as our understanding and
firsthand knowledge of the, of the problem as we see it in the Planning Department. I
would like to point out that this particular study will focus on how our land use
regulations plan and policy affect the housing cost infrastructure and infrastructure so
there will be, uh . . . this is a very, very complicated issue and touches a lot of different
areas, but this particular study will focus on land use regulation, planning policy and
infrastructure, and its affect on, on affordable housing.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The Maui Nui Task Force I was talking about is not the
Focus Maui Nui.
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MR. SUMMERS: Right, right.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's the, under the housing task force.
MR. SUMMERS: Right. The genesis of this is really the Focus Maui Nui reports.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And why isn't this line item in the Department of Housing
and Human Concerns? Why wouldn't they contract out for this kind of study?
MR. SUMMERS: Well, we want this study to really be directed towards the general plan and
how it will, uh, we wanna make sure that the focus again is on the land use side, and the
infrastructure side, and the planning policy side which are things that, uh, the general
plan is all about, but I would emphasize Director Foley indicated in the, that the Housing
Department would be very much involved in this project.
MR. FOLEY: If I could just add a couple of examples, when we have discussions about the
affordability of housing, urn, it often comes up that one of the, one of the cost that we
could modify would be the, the regulations concerning lot sizes and street widths, uh,
curbs, gutters and sidewalks, uh, and the time for processing applications. Those are,
those are regulations in the zoning ordinance and in the subdivision that this would take a
look at. So we would be taking a look at what, what regulations does the County have
that are (end of tape) influencing the cost of housing and would it be appropriate to have
some alternative regulations let's say just for affordable projects without waiving them
completely like 201 G, but maybe just to have some, some modifications like mixture of
density are permitted and smaller lot sizes and . . . which would encourage smaller
houses.
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: Well, help me understand how does this relate to the general
plan?
MR. FOLEY: The general plan is implemented by the zoning ordinance and the subdivision
ordinance, and if the general plan comes up with the idea, for instance, to really
emphasize infill and to have a higher density in Kahului and Kihei where we have lots of
infrastructure, uh, this, these kinds of regulations might be modified to accommodate
those changes from, in the general plan. The gen ... , usually implementation, uh, sections
of the general plan one of 'em says take a look at land use regulations and the zoning
regulations and the street standards and infrastructure standards, and modify them to, to
encourage infill and encourage affordable housing this is related to that kind of an
implementation tool. We're just anticipating that this particular kind of analysis is gonna
be necessary and we can't do it. So this is money for, to hire a consultant to work with
the MEO task force and Focus Maui Nui and the, the County's Technical Advisory
Committee, but be focused on regulations associated with the, with housing, affordable
housing primarily but, you know, one of the problems we, we have for instance is that a
lot of our regulations don't encourage mixed uses. Zoning typically discourages mixed
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uses so we may need to come up with modifications to a number of our zoning districts
that would allow housing above commercial, for instance, or housing above light
industrial uses, uh, housing above public uses, uh, those, those are the kinds of
regulations we would be taking a look at and especially with respect to whether or not
they add cost to affordable units.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Ms. Anderson followed by Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: On the same item, you know, you're saying here that the
research will document the extent and depth of the need for affordable housing on Maui,
and investigate the causes of the worsening affordable housing problem, but that's not
what you're saying now. You're, you're saying that you're gonna look at ... land use
regulations and planning policies. I wanna know what you're really intending to do with
this because, uh, is there any data that you would collect to document the extent and
depth of the need for affordable housing?
MR FOLEY: I think the answer to that is yes, but we would start with the County's Department
of Housing and Human Concerns because they, they have information, uh, regarding the
current need. They may not have any data regarding potential future needs, but we, we
would certainly work with them on the, the need for affordable housing and how many
units. One of the issues that needs to be looked at, for instance, is when there are 412
units of affordable housing provided in Jesse Spencer's project, uh, where do those 412
buyers come from? Are they, are they reducing overcrowding, uh, or are they families
moving to Maui, are they families with children that are gonna impact the schools, uh, we
need to get a better handle on, uh, what's the ripple effect of, of 412 affordable, uh,
single-family dwellings. Does that, how does that, uh, satisfy and impact overcrowded
conditions, for example. So, you know, we aren't trying to explain that this is totally
scoped out and exactly what the questions would be because we don't do that much work
without knowing that there's gonna be support by the Council and money allocated.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, if you want the money allocated I think you better
give us some details. Are you gonna be looking at vacation rentals and the impact they
have on affordable housing?
MR. FOLEY: We hadn't anticipated it as part of this analysis. There is a proposal being-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Excuse me, you have or have not?
MR. FOLEY: Have not. There's a separate, there's a proposal we've been looking at by a
company that just did a transient vacation rental study on Kauai, and we're gonna review
that report and see how, uh, how extensive it was and how it was done, look at the
methodology, look at the answers, and see whether or not, uh, it would be appropriate to
do some more study here, but so far the consultant that did that work has been talking to,
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uh, their, a number of different organizations, and I've, we haven't volunteered using any
County money yet, but we're hoping that that study can be paid for without using County
funds, but we are looking at a study to try to at least describe how many transient
vacation rentals we already have.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair, I would request that we get a more detail
breakdown as to what they're trying to accomplish with this housing cost structure
analysis because, I mean, anybody that lives in a rental will tell you that the vacation, the
proliferation of long-term vacation rentals has impacted the affordable housing on this
island. So I don't know why you wouldn't include that in this, and this County has
already looked at the extensive affordable or vacation rentals unpermitted that are
currently on this island and, and we know the numbers are in the thousands. So, um, I
don't know why you wouldn't look at that. I mean that's a huge impact on the cost of
affordable housing in Maui County.
MR. FOLEY: We are looking at it, but we weren't looking-CHAIR KANE: Excuse me, Mr. Foley.
MR. FOLEY: --at it as part of this stuff.
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry, excuse me.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So I would like to have a more detailed breakdown of what
they're actually looking for in this housing cost structure analysis.
CHAIR KANE Okay, and before we go any further, it seems that what is written here, as well as
the extensive verbal response that he's given to many of the questions, hopefully can
provide us with enough information to decide whether or not this is a viable consideration
or not. So member Anderson you still would like to get on top of what we have in the
minute as well as what they've written here as highlights-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, because we're getting contradictory, what they're
saying is not the same thing is what's being provided in the, in this written response.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And I'd like to see what data they're going after. I would
be a 100 percent in support of this if I could see this as being something that's gonna
really help us solve the affordable housing situation and not just, uh, you know,
substantiate the dumbing down of our land use regulations. We already have zero-lot
line, we already have plenty of things in our regulations that allow . . . mix use is
something I'm interesting in, but I'd like to see what they really going for in this. If they
could give us maybe just a detail list of the type of data that they're gonna be seeking.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chair, if! may. I do have-CHAIR KANE: No, no, no, Mr. Summers. What we're gonna do is we're gonna get that
question sent to the Department in writing and you folks can respond to a written
question. We don't have time to be going back and forth on $35,000 on a $400 million
budget, okay. So we'll get that in writing. Are there further questions in this area? Mr.
Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you. On page number six number eight. I was
wondering if the Department can explain, urn, or maybe tell me if any of the other
counties in the State of Hawaii impose a fee ordinance for police, fire, damage ... ,
drainage control and other services and facilities, especially fire and police.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'm not aware of, of within this State fees being
collected for those particular services. It is common in the, in the mainland.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: And I would assume that this fee is passed on to a new
buyer or maybe passed on to the cost of providing affordable housing. It may?
MR. SUMMERS: It very ... it certainly may depending on how the fee is structured.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions here in this area? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Urn ... the stated need for this project is that the County's
current practice of collecting fees for County service and facilities without appropriate
ordinances and rules isn't sustainable. So are you, uh, anticipating an attack, a legal
attack? We do have Corp. Counsel opinions that say, you know, as long as there's a
rational nexus for the impact we have every right to expect them to pay a fee so-MR. FOLEY: Mr. Chair, this might be a question that Corp. Counsel should answer, but we
have been advised by Corp. Counsel that the nexus needs to be, uh, written down, and
that there needs to be analysis accompanied with these fees that indicates how the amount
it was arrived at. So it's not just a matter of saying that we need a fire station because we
have 5,000 more people anticipated in this area, but also some analysis to show how
much the fire station is gonna cost and how much, uh, how the fees are gonna be
calculated in order to provide the fire station, and then what about the staffing and
maintenance of the fire station. So that's the, that's the kind of thing, and we have been
advised by the Public Works Department that additional information needs to be obtained
in order to, uh, substantiate the fees.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, again you're saying fees for police, fire, drainage and
other County services and facilities, uh, would that include roadways also per-MR. FOLEY: Yeah, we would look at all the existing fees including parks, and roads, and
schools, well, maybe not schools because that's State responsibility, but we would look at
our existing fees and in addition to looking at the possibility of new fees. As John
mentioned the, uh, in other states there had been a lot of work done and there are fees and
land required in other states for facilities such as fire stations just as an example but, yes,
we would look at our existing fees including parks, uh, sewer connections, water
connections.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, any further questions in this area? Ms. Anderson ... , excuse me,
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wanted to piggy-back on something that Ms. Anderson
said and that was in regard to the schools, and I think you had said, Mr. Foley, that
because it's a State issue, and yet Maui County pays tremendous amount of money each
year for all of the playgrounds, we pay for school crossing guards, we pay for many
things that are associated with our schools that would ordinarily be thought of a school
responsibilities that should be taken care of by the State. So I think that may be
something that you would wanna reconsider so thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, urn, I don't know if this is something that you
can include in this study, but I'm just gonna put it out there because I think it's, goes
hand in hand with what you're trying to effectuate by this study, and that is is that, urn,
whenever we have major land use entitlements that affect regional roadways, we always
put in as a condition that they're to pay their pro rata share of regional transportation
upgrades to be worked out by DOT and Public Works, and as far as I know DOT never
collects on those pro rata shares, and that shortchanges every taxpayer in this County. So
not just the taxpayer, but the commuter is shortchanged too. So I'd like to know if
there's some way that you could look at that. It doesn't do us any good to make sure that
we collect our fees at a local level, but they're not collected at the State level so that we
can use them on a local level. So if you could look into that as part of this study I'd
appreciate that. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Any further questions for the Planning Department?
Chair has one final question back on the item that member Tavares had discussion on
number two on Page 3 and 4. Mr. Summers if you can help us understand because your
comments that, were that, urn, you personally felt that the dollar amount that is already
included in the contract is inadequate and specifically the 20 meetings, the 12 GPAC, and
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the 8 regional meetings. How did you arrive at $90,000 and what does the $90,000
reflect as far as additional meetings that you would deem adequate?
MR. BOTEILHO: Mr. Chair, I can provide a brief overview on that.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. BOTEILHO: Forty-six thousand dollars is for 48 community outreach meetings, uh .
yeah, and then ten, ten, there's also ten GPAC meetings in addition to the 12 we already
have, that's $20,000, and the future fair is $25,000. So if you add all that up it comes out
to $91,000 and we rounded it back to $90,000. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: The future fair is $25,000, Mr. Boteilho?
MR. BOTEILHO: Yes, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: So, the 12 community meetings you folks are gonna kick it up by an additional
48 community meetings?
MR. BOTEILHO: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: For a total of 60 community meetings.
MR. BOTEILHO: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you for that clarification.
questions--Ms. Anderson.

Members, without any further

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, I'd like--oh, I'm sorry. We're gonna wait on the
MRA stuff?
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, the MRA is gonna, we're gonna have that now that's what the Chair
intends to provide adequate time. Because we have a public hearing tonight the Chair has
stated earlier that I intend to adjourn this meeting no later than four o'clock so that you
folks can take care of your personal needs prior to the public meeting at six-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So the MRA is not gonna be discussed today?
CHAIR KANE: It is. It's gonna be discussed, we're finished with everything else and we're
gonna make specific time just for the MRA, and so at this point the Chair is going to
recommend that if you have any further questions in this area that you provide them in
writing and we'll have staff send it over to the Department for a timely response to, uh,
their operations, and to their line items in their Planning program which they have
provided us with some highlights. Ms Anderson, we will get additional information on
the one that you asked for, and we'll do some additional follow up with those questions
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that were asked during the discussion. Okay, members, at this time we'll take ... let's
see, Mr. Foley, Mr. Boteilho, you folks are gonna be here specifically for the MRA
questions?
MR. BOTEILHO: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, why don't we get right into it, members, unless you folks would like to
take ten minutes 'cause I know we've been going since about 1:30 so why don't we go
ahead and take about ten minutes and we'll reconvene little before 3:15. Okay, we are in
recess. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

3:03 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:20 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Okay, members, let's reconvene. This should be our final stretch
for the day. With us we have the Department of Planning again and we're here to discuss
specifically the Maui Redevelopment Agency. There is a line item of $80,000 being
requested of. We also have as a resource person the current Chair I believe Mr. Lloyd
Poleman. Mr. Poleman, uh, I don't know if that is your title at this point.
MR. POLEMAN: I'm a member.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. You are the member, forgive me. I thought you were the Chair,
uh, and he's here as a resource person for your, uh, any of your requests, members,
specific to the Maui Redevelopment Agency. We also have received some written
testimony dated today, a three-page document, from Gerald Hiyakumoto, past Chair for
Fiscal Year '05 and former member of the MRA. So you can have that as reference.
With that we'll open the floor to Director Foley if you have any opening comments, uh,
oh, and members you also have this red folder, and that should provide you with
additional information regarding the MRA. Mr. Foley, any opening comments or you
need to defer to any of your resource personnel?
MR. FOLEY: Mr. Chairman, we have no opening comments. We just stand ready to answer
questions.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. With that being said, members, the floor is open. Any members would
like to address the Planning Department with respects to the Maui Redevelopment
Agency? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Happy to start, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm going through their April 10th submittal which is in a very nice
red plastic folder, Chairman, and I was going through their initial portion lA, Page Al or
AI, their frequent asked questions, and I'm going through what they have embraced as
their accomplishments. I find it interesting that programs that, you know, Senator Inouye
got the funding initiated, uh, that they take credit for. So my one question is, you know,
since you were able to do all these projects, how do you guys take care of your funding
requirements and who was in charge of the, uh, these programs? 'Cause people I knew
that was working was not part of the agency and was not part of the Planning
Department. So how does the MRA find it to take it as their accomplishments?
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chair, members of the agency. These are a list of actions
within the Wailuku Redevelopment Plan which was approved by the Council in October
2000. These are all implementing actions that have been successfully completed. I think
it's important to note that this is really a collaborative effort. It's not just the Maui
Redevelopment Agency, it's not just the Planning Department. The Office of Economic
Development has played a very important role in this. For instance the police substation
item was spearheaded by Yuki Lei Sugimura, but she worked closely with the Planning
Department and with the Maui Redevelopment Agency. The Redevelopment Agency
was also involved in this project, but the whole, the whole purpose of the Redevelopment
plan was to have a coordinated effort involves all the different department. Public Works
has played a very important role. They're the lead on the Market Street Beautification
Project. Planning Department took the lead on the small town zoning and development
code so we all have a different, a different piece to play that the agency has provided an
important service in the coordination of all these different activities.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It sounded nice, but I know how real that is, Mr. Summers.
MR. POLEMAN: If I could respond briefly. As far as the members of the agency, we're five
volunteer members, and it is correct that we can't accomplish all of the construction, and
all of the things that we would like to see done in the Wailuku Redevelopment district.
We see that we're a mechanism or a tool whereby those things can be accomplished, and
we think we could do more if we were given more resources. Currently we have a budget
of$15,000 this past year. Our resources are really from the Planning Department, but for
the support and the help that we do get from the Planning Department we'd have very
little that we could actually do as members. We're five volunteer members, members of
the community, who have an interest in the revitalization and the development of the
Wailuku area, and so I don't think we're trying to pretend as though we're trying to take
credit for things that we haven't accomplished. We're five volunteer members that's
what, that's what the agency is composed of, but we're resources as established by
Chapter 53 of the Hawaii Revised Statutes, and I think we could get a lot done given the
resources.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Has it ever been explained to you and the other members who
currently or has sat on this agency the understanding of authority that the State Chapter,
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uh, the State statute provides of the Council adopted or enacted to create the
establishment of the agency.
MR. POLEMAN: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: 'Cause we didn't have, the Council was not required to create a
Redevelopment Agency, okay.
MR. POLEMAN: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: State statute was enabling legislation that allowed counties that felt
the need to address the blight, that needed to address redevelopment, economic, uh,
improvement as one way of approaching it, and obviously Big Island and their Hilo
program has approached it from a different manner and so of course they have much
different results although I can say quite positive results than how we have moved
forward--Iet me say how we have not moved forward with our own agency here, but has
it been made clear to you the level of authority the agency has?
MR. POLEMAN: When I was appointed, what I did was I called John Summers, in fact
someone with the Planning Department, and I asked for a meeting that I could get an
education as far as what as a member of the Maui Redevelopment Agency I could do,
what this all came about, and he gave me some background information regarding the
Maui Redevelopment Agency, how it was established, under what authority under
Chapter 53 of the Hawaii Revised Statutes it was created, and the enabling ordinances
that were passed by the County Council. I took it upon myself to read all of Chapter 53,
which is a pretty dry chapter but if you, as far as the, my understanding as far as our legal
framework and authority, if you look at what was organized by John Summers on tab
three, which is the MRA overview of agency legal framework, mandate and powers, that
is what I understand it to be, and that's what I understand it to be from.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So we are here 40 years later finally trying to get some
muscle or teeth into the agency, or being considered for the agency. And one of the key
projects that this agency has requested and, you know, it's before us for many years, and
I would say within the last five years multiple times, which is the Wailuku Municipal
Parking structure and its role in the redevelopment of Wailuku, okay, and we have fed
people with land use request being told that you need to agree and pay your pro rata share
when this project moves forward, and the Council's role continues to be very important
regarding funding as well as agreeing to what that final project is gonna turn out to be,
and time and time again I can tell you the Council has been quite detailed in its verbal
responses that what is presented to us is not what we are willing to support, and yet the
same project tends to come back to us again maybe a little modification so instead of a
straight hair they put a perm on it, trying to give it a different look, but it's the same
project and it still doesn't get Council's support and it still not happening. When ... do
you want us to come up with the plan?
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MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chair, if I may. Members of the Budget Committee, if you
turn to your frequently asked questions, uh, tab-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just give me one response.
MR. SUMMERS: --tab one Page 2, uh, that particular project needs to come back to this body.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And have you folks made revisions to take the comments of the
members of the Council?
MR. SUMMERS: Well, we, we had an opportunity to present sort of the big picture. There was
an extensive PowerPoint presentation done-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I think it's a yes or no answer, Mr. Summers.
MR. SUMMERS: As I recall, we did not have or conclude our debate as a body on the project
so we're looking forward to doing that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: There's no debate. We just, you should know it's not what we're
gonna be supportive of that you keep bringing back over and over. You don't take into
account the components we've been asking you to include in that project. I don't care
whether you give me option A, B, C or Z, it's not what we want. If you guys so set on
doing it your way, which is gonna be sad 'cause it's not gonna, the end is not gonna
happen.
MR. FOLEY: Mr. Chairman, if I could respond. I think what Mr. Summer is saying is that we
don't interpret the Council's action to, uh, be the same Mr. Hokama's describing. We've
been proceeding with the project and we have not been told by the Council to change the
project. We're willing to schedule it for another Council meeting and see if there are
specific direction from the majority of the Council but (end of tape) the majority of the
Council does not support the project.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just a parking structure?
MR. FOLEY: Pardon.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just a parking structure proposal? That's what you guys sent to us, a
parking structure proposal.
MR. FOLEY: That's, yeah, that's part of the revitalization project.
MR. SUMMERS : Yeah, the, the plan does include other uses as well, other concepts for
different types of uses. What I'm trying to say is that I don't recall having a full
comprehensive debate on this project before this, this body, and that's what we intend to
do to move forward and have that discussion so that we can get a clear position from the
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majority of the members of the Council on a particular concept for that, for that project.
We're looking forward to that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Where have you been the last six years? In an isolated corner? It's
been before us numerous times. You guys so stuck in doing it the same old way. I'm
done.
CHAIR KANE: Questions, members, to the Department or to Mr. Poleman, one of the members
of the MRA? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, I was reading through the materials and one of the
elements that have been included is the . . . I guess it would be the civic improvement
district ordinance, and with regard to that, where do you see . . . are you gonna be
introducing the legislation or how would this proceed, Mr. Summers?
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. If you look at our April 6, 2005, Page 2, project B-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. SUMMERS: --the Business Improvement District ordinance, the thought was to move
forward with that particular project. We felt it's a very important project. It does have to
be adopted through ordinance so the final decision making authority is this body.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and I remember the last time that that was brought
forward to discuss in committee, there was still some questions on the part of the Council
members. So I can't recall if that particular ordinance was for the whole entire County to
enact enabling legislation or if it was specific to the Wailuku area. If I recall I believe it
was Countywide.
MR. SUMMERS: Right. This is very, very specific and it would be modeled after what was
done in Waikiki and in front, Fort Street Mall in Honolulu where they started a very
successful business improvement districts and they've managed to get the private sector
and the landowner community heavily involved in the revitalization effort which is
something we think is very important.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Once that ordinance is in place and operational, would that
also enable other monies to come into the area or would that, if let's say the business
owners and the people that are actually participating in this process would that enable
other money to come in so that some of these projects would then be able to be
implemented?
MR. SUMMERS: I do think it would help the cause in terms of securing other alternative
revenue streams whether it be Federal or additional County or State money.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and I guess because I'm not use to dealing with this
too, I know we have enterprise zones and then we have the redevelopment areas which
are areas of blight and, you know, let's say things that basically become eligible for
funding to try to restore and preserve some of that character. How do those two things
differ or is this an enterprise zone and a redevelopment area?
MR. SUMMERS: This is really more of a, uh, in terms of a Business Improvement District it's
really more of a tool whereby the property owners can decide whether or not they want to
contribute in the form of an assessment two various activities that are specifically spelled
out.
Typically those activities include landscaping, maintenance and sidewalks,
additional security, marketing for the area. The general designation of a redevelopment
area is very helpful as it relates to securing Federal monies. For instance, if you wanna
move forward with the parking structure project and try to defray part of the cost using
Federal monies, having that designation will be very important.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And then with regard--because I guess what you're
saying then is that the civic improvement district in the redevelopment area are one little
area, and then with regard to enterprise zone, this wouldn't really fall into that category
because it doesn't have the type of industry that would be considered for a enterprise
zone is that correct?
MR. SUMMERS: The enterprise zone would be a separate program.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and I know the redevelopment area is real specific
because it has boundaries. When you get out, like I'm thinking of areas like in, you
know, Wailuku County Estates or, you know, areas surrounding here where small
businesses might be able to benefit from some type of economic development, do you see
that area being recommended as an enterprise zone or at some point in the future?
MR. SUMMERS: Certainly something that could be explored because as you noted the
redevelopment area is very specific and define and doesn't capture some of these other,
other important areas.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Would that be something though that let's say to help
support the redevelopment area that the Redevelopment Agency or the Planning
Department could took, take a look at and then perhaps recommend or help to apply for
designation of areas that could be deemed enterprise zones?
MR. SUMMERS: It certainly something that we could look at.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And before I recognize you, Mr. Molina, thank you, uh, members,
on the April 6th the number one item that continues on to Page 2 and 3, breaks down
specifically what the $80,000 is gonna be, uh, is proposed to be used for, specifically the
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Vineyard and Church Street beautification plan, and that's for implementing specific
projects set forth in the, uh, Wailuku Redevelopment Plan and then second the Business
Improvement District. The first one, the Vineyard/Church Street beautification project
cost, uh, is projected at $70,000; and the Business Improvement District, which is
described on Pages 2 and 3, has a projected cost of 10,000 for the total of $80,000. So
that's for the specific 80,000 and because we have, uh, member of the MRA as well as
the Planning Department, you can expand your questions to get better, a better
understanding of the MRA. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. I think you pretty much answered the
question that I was gonna ask but, but I'll ask it anyway. You know looking at the
Wailuku Redevelopment Plan, the implementation report, you have 28 I guess proposals
for action and about 15 of 'em are checked mark as ongoing. With this increase from
15,000 to 80,000, how much of these proposals for actions do you believe you'll be able
to at least, uh, you know, complete?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Molina, what tab number are you looking at?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: This would be under I guess two, tab number two.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Thank you.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. If we go to Page 2 of that, of that implementation
report, item VPC-5, which is the third row from the top.
CHAIR KANE: Page 2, yes.
MR. SUMMERS: Right. These are taken directly out of the Wailuku Redevelopment Plan. So
these are the specific implementing actions out of that planning document. This
particular item includes street scape enhancements. The $80,000 and the 70, 70 of that
would be used for street scape enhancements on Vineyard and Church Street. This will
get us the planning portion of the project. We will then need to go in for Federal monies
for the construction documents and the construction funding.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. On this particular one any continued 'cause I just have a question
just right here, but if there's anything else in this one--I recognize you member Anderson.
On this, the VPC-5 do you have a question? And I only ask it because I have a question
right here in this area before we move on to any of the questions.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, they're talking about ...
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
beautification plan?

Talking about the Vineyard Street, Church Street

CHAIR KANE: Yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Uh ... I have a question in regards to ... it's called the
Market Street Beautification plan I guess which includes Vineyard, Church and Central.
In your April 6th response you say that the County's investment in the Market Street
Beautification Plan has yielded over three million in Federal funds, and that the
Department expects this project will also net the County several million in Federal
funding. Could you explain those Federal funds to me, please?
MR. SUMMERS: Sure. The Market Street Beautification Plan is specifically for Market Street.
It does not include Church Street or Vineyard Street or any other street. Essentially what
the County was able to do is take the planning document that was developed for Market
Street and utilize that to get Federal transportation improvement monies to implement the
project. Having the plan, having the plan made it much easier for the Department to get
those Federal funds. The project is currently under construction.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And what is it include?
MR. SUMMERS: It'll include traffic calming measures, improve streetlighting, street furniture,
landscaping, uh, from Wells Street all the way through Happy Valley.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that's the $3 million?
MR. SUMMERS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so this Vineyard and Church Street Beautification
Plan is going to be similar to the Market Street plan? I thought I heard you say-MR. SUMMERS: We would like to emulate what happened on Market Street because we feel it
was very successful.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
already got the plan?

Then why do you need $70,000 to do that if you've

MR. SUMMERS: Well, the plan is very different. The plan for Market Street can't be used for
Vineyard Street, they're different streets. We have to do topographic surveys, uh, the
pedestrian circulation infrastructure is different. For instance, Vineyard Street doesn't
have a sidewalk from the corner of Vineyard and Market down to Central which is a very
dangerous situation. So those specific nuances of Vineyard Street need to be planned for.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So once you get this plan done then you're gonna try to
use that to leverage-- 75 -
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MR. SUMMERS: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --Federal money to actually implement the plan.
MR. SUMMERS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And my, Chair's question had to do with that to tie in so the
Market Street just to match it up with the Federal funding you said you described for
Market Street, is that the 1.4 that was appropriated for last year that's currently being
used for the Market Street improvements, that's the County funds $1.4 million that was
put in to the '05 budget?
MR. SUMMERS: Right. I believe the majority of it is, is Federal money. I'd have to go back
and look at the '05 budget.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, I'm talking about specifically the County's $1.4 million for this year.
MR. SUMMERS: Typically-CHAIR KANE: And the reason I'm asking that question, members, is because with the $70,000
if we're gonna be pursuing Federal funds there's gonna be a County match required and
so the Chair's question is intending on trying to find out what can we anticipate as a
Federal, excuse me, as a County match to Federal funds 'cause they're not gonna do it
100 percent. And the other question for the, uh . . . for the VPC-5 area . . . is just
Planning Department the only implementing agency in this or you just noting it as the
lead agency, yeah? Just for clarity you folks the lead agency for Market Street as well as
for the Vineyard, Church and Central Ave. components that are coming up?
MR. SUMMERS: Public... okay, Planning Department will be the lead during the concept
planning for the project. Public Works will carry it through the construction plans and
the construction implementation.
CHAIR KANE: Are there intentions to get underneath subsurface for Vineyard, Church and
Central as part of this initial $70,000 project as far as water, sewer, infrastructure-MR. SUMMERS: No-CHAIR KANE: --where is that, where is that gonna take place prior to us putting down pretty
pavement and sidewalks and such?

- 76 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 11, 2005

MR. SUMMERS: Right. The idea is definitely to coordinate that. We don't wanna tear up the
streets over and over again, but we do have an infrastructure plan developed for that
street.
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry. Can you repeat that so ... this $70,000 is to ...
MR. SUMMERS: It's simply street scape enhancement. It does not include sewers, drainage
facilities.
CHAIR KANE: Is that being coordinated in some other area? In other words why give you this
if the sewers, and the water and everything else improvements are not being planned for
at this time?
MR. SUMMERS: Yes-CHAIR KANE: We're trying to coordinate that effort.
MR. SUMMERS: --we're coordinating that.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, so where is it ... can you identify where it's being, the correlation is
taking place in another department. I don't know if the Budget Director can help us with
that.
MR. SUMMERS: And not in this budget, but in a previous budget a study for an infrastructure
plan of the area was conducted, and so that covers our drainage facilities, waste water, the
other types of subsurface infrastructure. Typically what we do is, is have discussions
with Water primarily and Public Works to make sure that if they're planning
improvements, those improvements are coordinated so that we don't have to carry the
streets up over and over again.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, so, I, I , and the Chair apologizes. So that subsurface infra structural
work has already been done and that's just awaiting this component before it can move
forward for actual design construction?
MR. SUMMERS: The idea there was to implement an additional implementing action, and this
report is to develop that infrastructure plan so that's what that is intended for.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you.
Pontanilla.

Ms. Tavares thanks for your patience and then Mr.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'll do it later.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Mr. Pontanilla.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Chair. In regards to subsurface, how does
the utility companies play in a part as far as the redevelopment, uh, especially on Market
Street? Do we get any feedback from them if they're gonna go subsurface?
MR. SUMMERS: We do consult with them. We would like to get the, uh, the, uh, power and
phone lines underground. Utility company is willing to work with us on it, but it would
require substantial investment on the County's part to do that. It's very, very expensive.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So, there's no way of getting some Federal funds to
relocate from overhead to underground?
MR. SUMMERS: I'm not aware of any Federal monies for that. We could, we could certainly
do some additional research on that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: As far as the Market Street improvements, uh, you say
from Wells Street all the way down to Piihana, on Wells Street itself, do you folks take a
look at safety issues in regards because we have lao School, uh, Papa crossing, well,
traffic lights so that kids can cross that intersection safely?
MR. SUMMERS: I don't believe we looked at traffic lights. We have looked at traffic calming
devices such as street bulb-outs, where the kids are not ... basically what you're trying to
do is shorten the crosswalk so we are trying to improve pedestrian circulation features
particularly for school aged children and the elderly.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: 'Cause, urn, you know, we have a lot of concerns in
regard to that one particular intersection because most of the kids come from Piihana,
Happy Valley area, and they do walk Market Street as their main mode of trans ... , well,
going to school.
MR. SUMMERS: Right. It's a serious concern for us as well.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Questions, members. Any further questions specific to the 80,000
or broader since we do have, made the time for the discussion on MRA? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, I wanna, I wanna, uh, discuss the remaining 10,000
for the Business Improvement District. So the $10,000 will be to create an ordinance to
allow for this?
MR. SUMMERS: There would need to be both ordinance changes as well as a specific business
improvement plan for the area so the ordinance and the plan go together. Ten thousand
dollars is not gonna do the entire project. If you look at page three at the bottom, you'll
see a note that we're requesting $10,000, but that this would be an initial core assignment
for the "urban renewal planner" if said position is funded as a Planning Department staff
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or as an MRA Executive Director.
in-house.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
specifically for this project?

We're anticipating on doing most of the work

So you're asking, asking for an additional position

MR. SUMMERS: Not specifically for this project but-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mean initially.
MR. SUMMERS: --but it would be a core responsibility of that particular position which we
discussed at the previous meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Are business owners in this area and I'm assuming the area
is going to be down town Wailuku is that correct?
MR. SUMMERS: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Are they all aware of this that they're gonna be assessed a
fee?
MR. SUMMERS: That-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And can you give some kind of idea of what kind of fee
we're looking at?
MR. SUMMERS: I would need to go back ... I've got information on the fees, the fee structure
for the districts in Honolulu, but this is gonna require a serious outreach effort. In order
to establish one of these districts, a majority of the landowners have to either support,
depending on the way the ordinance is structured, they either have to support the effort or
no more than 50 percent can oppose it. So there will need to be a significant amount of
community outreach in order to get the business owners involved they all need an
opportunity to vote on the proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So they're not even really aware of it yet?
MR. SUMMERS: There hasn't been a lot of public notification as, as it relates to this specific
project that's what would have to happen in order, in sort of the pre-initiation phase of
the project.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
comparable to Honolulu's.

I wouldn't think that our fees would be anywhere

MR. SUMMERS: That's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But can you give me an idea?
MR. SUMMERS: I would really wanna-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And what's the fee based on?
MR. SUMMERS: The fee's based on the plan itself, and so the plan will specifically identify
exactly what will be accomplished and exactly how the fees, uh, how and why the fees
are needed to accomplish the specific actions. The property owner-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Now, wait a minute, wait a minute, John. What plan are
you talking about the Wailuku ... , what plan?
MR. SUMMERS: In order to adopt a Business Improvement District ordinance, two basic
products are needed--a Business Improvement District ordinance, and a Business
Improvement plan for the area. The plan will set forth the exact projects that will be
implemented and the specific cost per land owner and how that fee will be assessed. All
the landowners in the area are provided that information, and have a specific role in
approving or rejecting the program.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Redevelopment plan?

And how

IS

that plan different from the Wailuku

MR. SUMMERS: It's different in the sense that you're really dealing with more day-to-day
operational issues, security, maintenance of certain improvements that are made, uh,
those types of features. Could be a different boundary as well.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: When the Wailuku Redevelopment Plan was put together,
were business owners in the area made aware that this type of a impact fee might be
assessed to them in the future?
MR. SUMMERS: We did do an extensive outreach effort. We did have language identifying
tax increment, financing, property tax abatement programs, and similar types of
programs. This Business Improvement District concept is something that, you know,
recently has been initiated on in the City and County of Honolulu and they've had great
success with it so it's something that certainly should be looked at.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, City and County of Honolulu they have a whole
different, you know, marketing base and everything.
MR. SUMMERS: Oh, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, my concern is that we're gonna further burden
business owners that are having a hard time making it right now with this kind of an
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impact fee, and I'm just trying to get an idea
on--percentage of sales, square footage, what is it?

III

Honolulu what do they base it

MR. SUMMERS: It's based specifically on the cost of the projects.
MR. FOLEY: But it's based on square footage.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. Based on square footage. So, for instance, a
property owner who has a 30,000 square foot commercial office building would be
assessed a different amount than a property owner next door who has a 3,000 square
foot-CHAIR KANE: Pro rata, pro rata share.
MR. SUMMERS: Pro rata.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So we don't even know what that amounts gonna be until
and if we fund for this new "urban renewal planner" and this $10,000 in order for you to
even figure out what that might be.
MR. SUMMERS: I think the fee, the fee and the projects would be based on this extensive
outreach effort because if the fees are set too high it'll have a negative impact on the area.
If the fees are set too low, you just won't get a whole lot done. So you wanna make sure
that everybody is very comfortable with the fee. You certainly don't wanna shoot
yourself in the foot with a program like this. It's very important to do your research, it's
very important to have a robust public involvement strategy.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Has there been any study to show how the lack of parking
has affected the redevelopment of Wailuku Town?
MR. SUMMERS: We have done several studies, and we have several applicants that wanna
move forward with projects that really can't because the park ... , the lots are too small
and they're covered with building. So we've got a combination of studies and we've got
empirical evidence that suggest that there is a problem.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So really until we solve the parking problem we're not
gonna really revitalize Wailuku. We can dress it up and make it look pretty, but until we
solve the parking problem there isn't gonna be any real economic benefit to the business
owners down there because there won't be an increase ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Traffic.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... in traffic to their business without that parking.
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MR. POLEMAN: Yeah, I think that the intent of that, if we get the funding for either the person
in the Planning Department or an Executive Director of the Maui Redevelopment
Agency, the number one priority is in regard to the parking and the parking structure
because you have it absolutely right without the development of the parking structure to
allow the businesses and the property owners around the structure to be able to do
something with their buildings so that they comply with parking ordinance requirements,
that's really the next step, and that's the vision and that's the goal of the Maui
Redevelopment Agency right now is to work toward working out something in regard to
the municipal parking lot structure, and that is why we're looking for the funding either
as an Executive Director position or, uh, position in the Planning Department that is
earmarked with an emphasis for the Maui Redevelopment Agency. Our next step is to try
and find some Federal money to be able to coordinate with State and County money
toward that project, and we had a possibility. There was ... Betsill Brothers came in
with a building that they're building on the corner of Church and Vineyard Street, and
when they came to us initially they were under par. .. , they were under, they didn't have
adequate parking, and they talked about a possibility of funding 70 to $80,000 that could
be used toward investigating Federal grant money to try and develop the municipal
parking lot as an abatement for their parking requirements, but by the time they came
back to the next meeting, they had reconfigured their structure and they put their parking
underneath their structure so they had no need for an abatement and that offer of that 70
to $80,000 for that Federal grant study went away, and that was while we were also
discussing at the MRA what shall we possibly request for the County Council as part of
our budget. Well, because we were anticipating and hoping to get that money from the
Betsill Brothers project we didn't include it in our budget, and I can't really speak to date
toward a proposal that I don't have the complete support of the MRA on, and
unfortunately if we don't ... , but that's probably derailed for a year until we can come
back for next year's budget to ask for that type of funding unless there's some other way
we can find that money. Now, to give you a heads up-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, excuse me, that money for what specifically?
MR. POLEMAN: The idea is that if we can get 70 to $80,000 we can hire grant, a researchers
and grant writer to be able to find Federal money. Ifwe can't find Federal money for the
municipal parking lot it's not gonna happen. There isn't enough County money, there's
not enough private money, there's not enough State money that's really willing to come
forward. We really will need Federal money, and if we can't get the Federal money, we
probably gonna have to go home on the whole idea and the sooner we know that maybe
the better we are because then we have to come up with other options such as satellite
parking lots or other things like that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see that ... , I can't recall where I read it, but I just recently
read that, urn, there was a study done on the users of the municipal parking lot. Are you
aware of that John?
MR. SUMMERS : Yes, we did do a user server, survey of the parking lot.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And what did it show?
MR. SUMMERS: I don't have the survey before me, but it showed that the State is a major user
of that particular facility. The County actually is not. There was, uh, there was a general
feeling that the County was a big user, but the study proved otherwise. I guess people
don't wanna walk very far so our participation in the use of that particular site at this
particular time is not, is not strong.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I understand you have to be there very early to get a
space.
MR. SUMMERS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, that was my, I was suspicious that the primary users
were the State, State (end of tape) so. . .
MR. SUMMERS: Well, they, they are a major user. They aren't, they aren't the primary user,
but they are a major user of that particular facility.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could we get a copy of that study from you, please.
MR. SUMMERS: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'd like to see what the breakdown is because, urn, I don't
think it should just be a County responsibility to increase the parking in down town
Wailuku.
MR. SUMMERS: And, and we do have ways to make sure that the State pays their fair share.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And who pays fees to use this parking lot? Is it just first
come first serve?
MR. SUMMERS: At this time it is first come first serve.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and who maintains it the County?
MR. SUMMERS: The County maintains it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions? Member Tavares followed by member
Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Is this the study?
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MR. SUMMERS: No, that's a study of infrastructure deficiencies in the area.
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: So there's another study that show who the users are. Is it in
any of your books?
MR. SUMMERS: I do believe we transmitted it at one point.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Is it in one of these things?
MR. SUMMERS: It very well may be, but I can have copies made and sent to the, to this body.
CHAIR KANE: We'll have staff follow up, member Tavares-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --since, see if we have anything available.
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: My question, and my questions is on, on your section two in
your, uh, handout, what you did was list all of the implementing actions from your
Wailuku Redevelopment plan the one that was adopted by the Council right?
MR. SUMMERS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: But in this listing it's just listed it's not prioritized right?
MR. SUMMERS: Right, right. These are listed by category. If you get in to the planning
document you'll see that LU stands for the land use items.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
MR. SUMMERS: So it's broken out that way.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Also from your, your study or from the plan that was
adopted by the Council this December 2000 plan, it has a MRA implementation plan on
Page 42, and it has, the title of it is "priority projects next two years" and then number
one is hire an executive director, number two is lao Theater improvements, number three
is the police substation, number four is a small town code, five is, you know, it looks like
it went through and prioritize . . . of those implementing actions it prioritized it there. I
mean I know it was interest. That the municipal parking lot isn't until page two of that
section which is the two to five years priority. You know we have been going a little bit
round and round on this parking structure, but I think, Mr. Chair, what it comes down to
is we're expecting a volunteer board or bunch, uh, volunteered board of people to
actually be doing kind of a horrendously huge job. So I would think that I think we said
last budget go around that we wanted the MRA to come up with a plan or a proposal to
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provide staff for the MRA so that you've got a professional working for the MRA that
can assist in putting these things together and prioritizing. I mean I see this 80,000 it's
low hanging fruit a beautification project' cause it's easy to do, it's there, it's visible, and
the same time we have a bigger issue which is the municipal parking lot and we need to
address that. If that parking lot and I, you know, going through these things we got plan
A, B, C. The preferred one is a conglomeration of A, Band C options called PC-lor
something like that, and the way that the original plan came out, it was to, it was even
stated in the book that the parking lot with opportunities for mix use development such as
business, hotel, commercial, residential, entertainment, public parking, or other uses that
will create an activity generator and that's what we passed. All of the plans that have
been adopted or the plans that had been recommended, they haven't been adopted yet,
plans that have been recommended set out the mixed use part of it in a separate building
on the remnant lot, and I think this is what, and not just Mr. Hokama, I have an objection
to this also, and that in the parking structure itself there is not an accommodation of
mixed use in the parking structure itself, and I want us to avoid having something that
looks and acts like just a parking lot, a parking structure. I don't think that will enhance,
and that's my personal opinion, I don't think that will enhance the down town area. So I
think where we're not coming to a meeting of the minds here is first of all, you know,
with the parking structure what did we decide? Do we want Pili Street or not? That's the
first decision to make. Then based on that decision how do we want these two parcels
treated? And so we seem to be bogged down in there, and I think it's time for us to really
say if we're gonna give any money to the MRA I wanna give it to them to hire an
executive director and maybe a secretary, and let's get everything back on track. I do not
personally feel that it should be a planner from the Planning Department assigned to the
MRA. The MRA needs to operate as independently as possible and that means we gotta
cut that umbilici cord. MRA has gotta be a child walking instead of just crawling. It's
gotta be walking and acting like an MRA, and I think when you get to that point things
will just fly along because a lot of the hard works already been done as far as coming up
with the plans and the priorities and that stuff. So, Mr. Chair, that's where I'm going
with the request. I'll support dollars for the MRA, but I want it to be used for them to
hire the staff that they need in order to promote and produce the programs and maybe we
can get the parking lot back on track with Council approval. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Pontanilla:
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA:
Thank you.
Redevelopment boundaries if we can have a map.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's in there.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Oh, it's in there?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The map is in there.

- 85 -

All I wanted was the Wailuku

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 11, 2005

CHAIR KANE: Yeah, and I believe we, we, we have that, but we'll make sure that's available.
Any additional questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, I just would quickly like to ... , I'm sure this has been
explained in the past, but I'm new here so you have to explain it to me. As the very first
implementing action for the Wailuku Redevelopment Agency it was to hire an executive
director back in 2000. Can you tell me why that hasn't happen? Why there's been no
effort to do that?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Summers, or Director Foley or. .. , Planning Department?
MR. FOLEY: Mr. Chairman, in response to Ms. Anderson, we asked during the, during the
budget session last year there was a request for money for either, uh, an executive
director or a planner. There was discussion about the advantages and the disadvantages
of having it be a separate staff versus planner. Our, our recommendation was that we
start with a planner because that way you don't have to have separate offices and a
secretary, and basically what happened is that we got neither. We didn't get the planner
or the, or the executive director, but we did ask, and the Redevelopment Agency was here
and they asked for, uh, a staff person. This year they've adopted a resolution, which was
forwarded to you, asking that you fund a planner and Mr. Poleman can speak for the
agency's action, but basically our position is the same that it would be more
economically feasible, we think, to start with a planner and then maybe when the parking
structure project get started and there's a lot more work, then it would be appropriate to
have, uh, an executive director, a secretary, their own office and stuff. We obviously
can't, uh, you know, house a separate semi-autonomous agency in our, our offices, uh,
and furnish them with a lot of staff without additional money from the Council.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well ... yeah, but you're saying that this is what you
wanna do, but yet the plan that was adopted by the Council and put together by, I'm
assuming the MRA, calls for an executive director, and I'm in agreement with, Mr. Chair,
with, urn, member Tavares that this agency is an agency should have autonomy. The
Planning Department should work for them not the other way around, and I think if, if
they had the money to hire an executive director, urn, there would be a way to find an
office and, and a way to staff that executive director.
MR. FOLEY: Mr. Chairman, we have no, we have no objection to that. If you'd like to hire an
executive director that's fine with us. We thought you wanted to spend less money, but if
you choose to have an executive director instead of a planner we, we have no objection.
We just thought it would be substantially more expensive because that person would need
a clerical help and they would need an office with furniture-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, we're talking about 2006 right now, Mr. Foley, and
I'm talking about why hasn't this happen since 2000 you know ...
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MR. FOLEY: It's just, you know, money. Right now we're, we're ... , the agency is operating
with maybe 20 percent of one person.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Yeah, and that's the problem.
MR. FOLEY: That's the answer. If you wanna-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, yeah, but up until recently, Mr. Summers was
spending 50 to 60 percent of his time on the MRA.
MR. FOLEY: Yeah, some of that, yeah, not consistently 50 or 60, but right now it's 20. We've
lost two, two employees in the long range division. We're hoping to replace them but,
you know, this agency is not gonna be able to take on projects like a parking structure
with, with 20 percent of John's time.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Hang on staff. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'll yield.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Before I recognize you, Mr. Hokama, go ahead staff.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair, I just wanted to point out that in the Fiscal Year 2002 budget, this
Coun ... , the Council appropriated $50,000, but I remember that time that was to be used
for a director.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I was gonna bring that up because I had the privilege of
chairing the Council's committee that did the update on the com ... , Wailuku
Redevelopment plan as well as your past Budget Chairman. Mr. Chairman, at this time
we continually bring up the subject, and it's just like this today, who'd be speaking for
the agency? The Planning Department, okay. The agency wants to move forward, I'm
happy to support my colleague from Upcountry. So just like the statute and our language
provides, hire an executive director or I guess they call it a manager in the documents,
which shall be responsible for the hire and fire of personnel for the agency, okay. This
agency should have independent standing just like any other department not dependent
upon another County department, but they have independent standing like our
departments. Unless we're gonna move forward in a manner that we can then hold those
professionals feet to the fire, I'm not gonna buy it from the Planning Department on what
they think they want for the agency. We need to do what is good from the agency's
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standpoint, and that's have them be independent, and that's why I know I made some
hard statements, and I appreciate Mr. Poleman being here and listening to him 'cause if
you don't sense our frustration, I more than happy to give you more time to chat with you
and to tell you why this frustration is valid and justified from the Council. And I think
Ms. Tavares brought it up point blank with the parking structure about that additional
street or no additional street, okay. And so I think the agency members as volunteers
need to think do you want now to be at the next step? I don't want you clinging to the
Planning Department 'cause you don't have to be. Forty years old this agency. It's time
you guys stood and walk and explain to the people and come up with your plan why you
want a special financing consideration. It shows you're already working one tax
abatement proposal, and I don't know what Council member has been informed of the
parameters of a tax abatement proposal and how that impacts the regular general fund and
all the other districts that depend on general fund, but I would hope that, Mr. Chairman,
maybe this might be a good impetus for the agency to look at themselves independent of
the Planning Department, independent of the Council. Look at yourselves and see the
test you've been given, okay, 'cause you in my mind, although people don't wanna admit
it, are pretty much a super agency, with broad and great authorization to get your job
done. Planning Department needs you to make things happen in Wailuku. You don't
need the Planning Department. I hope you guys would take a look at it from a different
point of view, Mr. Poleman, 'cause I think we can make good things happen here, and for
me personally, I'm tired of waiting. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Any further questions or comments before the Chair ask that
any further questions be forwarded? Ultimately, members, within the next couple of
weeks we'll be making as a committee recommendations that will create the destiny for
this particular item as well as all the others. So ultimately it is in our hands to decide
whether it's funding as requested funding, amended funding with provisos on what we
wanna see as been suggested by some of you. We will be in that position in less than two
weeks to have that discussion. Any further questions, members? If not, please forward
any questions you may have to the staff and then we'll get that sent over to the
Department. Mr. Poleman as well as to the rest of the, you in the Department--Director
Foley, Deputy Boteilho, Mr. Summers--thank you very much for your presence this
afternoon. We appreciate it.
Members, just very briefly, tomorrow Tuesday, April lih from nine o'clock to lunch
we're anticipating Public Works, Solid Waste Division, abandon vehicles, scrap metal
program, solid waste operations, DSA operations, and engineering, as well as operations
for highway operations. So please, if you can, uh, do another review of that materials,
and if you have any questions please be prepared tomorrow for us to move on that, and
then tomorrow afternoon we're looking at Parks operations, rates, fees for golf and green
fees, that is our focus so again if you can prepare for that. Tonight at six thirty right here
in this Chamber we'll have the public hearing chaired by our Council Chair Hokama. So
we have a couple of hours to take care of our personnel needs and be ready for that. Any
comments before I adjourn the meeting, members? Hearing none, this meeting for April
11 th, 2005, is adjourned... (gavel) . ..
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DEFER pending further discussion.
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